
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Children & Adults, Public Health & Voluntary Sector Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Monday 12th September, 2022 

   

Time: 
 

 6.30 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.06, 18.07 and 18.08 - 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, 
London, SW1E 6QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Angela Piddock (Chair) 
Iman Less 
Tim Mitchell 
Ellie Ormsby 

 

Karen Scarborough 
Selina Short 
Max Sullivan 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception.  If you have a disability and require 
any special assistance please contact the Committee Officer 
(details listed below) in advance of the meeting. 
 

   

  Email: akassi@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Committee and Governance Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

4.   PORTFOLIO UPDATE - CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG 
PEOPLE,  LEARNING AND LEISURE 

(Pages 9 - 14) 
 
 

5.   PORTFOLIO UPDATE - CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT 
SOCIAL CARE, PUBLIC HEALTH AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR 

(Pages 15 - 22) 
 
 

6.   ANNUAL YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN (Pages 23 - 
100) 

7.   OUT OF SCHOOL PROVISION (Pages 101 - 
106) 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 107 - 
120) 

 
 
Stuart Love 
Chief Executive 
1 September 2022 
 



           
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
 

CHILDREN & ADULT, PUBLIC HEALTH & VOLUNTARY SECTOR  
POLICY & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

12 JULY 2022 
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Children & Adult, Public Health & Voluntary Sector 
Policy & Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 12 July 2022 at 6.30pm at Westminster 
City Hall, Room 18.06, 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP. 
 
Members Present: Councillors Angela Piddock (Chair), Iman Less, Tim Mitchell, Ellie 
Ormsby, Karen Scarborough, Selina Short and James Small- Edwards.  
 
Co-opted Members: Ryan Nicol. 
 
Also present: Councillor Nafsika Butler-Thalassis (Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care, Public Health and Voluntary sector) and Councillor Tim Roca (Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning and Leisure). 
 
Apologies for Absence: Max Sullivan and Marina Coleman. 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
1.1 Nominations for the post of Chair were invited.  One nomination was received 

and seconded.  There were no further nominations. 
 

1.2 RESOLVED: That Councillor Angela Piddock be appointed Chair of the Children 
& Adult, Public Health & Voluntary Sector Policy and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

2. MEMBERSHIP 
 
2.1 The Chair announced that Councillor James Small-Edwards was substituting for 

Councillor Max Sullivan. 
 
2.2 The Chair welcomed Councillor Nafsika Butler-Thalassis (Cabinet Member for 

Adult Social Care, Public Health and Voluntary sector) and Councillor Tim Roca 
(Cabinet Member for Young People, Learning and Leisure) to the meeting. 

 
2.3 The Chair also welcomed the Members of the Council and the co-opted Members 

to the Committee. 
 

MINUTES 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4. Policy and Scrutiny Portfolio Overview: Cabinet Member for Adult Social 

Care, Public Health and Voluntary Sector 
 
4.1 The Cabinet Member provided an overview of her portfolio including its service 

areas, priorities for the year ahead and key service updates/issues. The Cabinet 
Member responded to questions on the following topics: 

 

 the importance of supporting foodbanks, food pantries and the provision of 
advice and support to mitigate the cost-of-living crisis. 

 the timeframe for the scope of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) on 
health inequalities facing Westminster BAME communities and the relationship 
between these communities and public institutions. 

 the necessity to continue lobbying for Westminster Council to have some direct 
representation on the Integrated Care Board (ICB) 

 the importance of early diagnoses of mental health issues and substance abuse. 

 the importance of developing a strategy to support the BME community through 
the voluntary sector and to identify where there were gaps in provision 
specifically in the most deprived wards. 

 the importance of providing services which can be accessed by the whole 
community, including exploring the possibility of providing collective funding for 
services for all adults with learning disabilities.  

 the on-going budget pressures on Adult Social Care Health (ASCH) 
 

4.2 Other issues discussed were the data collection and covid status in care homes, 
GDPR, the outbreak of monkeypox and visits to voluntary sector organisations. 

 
4.3 ACTIONS:  
 

1. That Hallfield Food bank be added to Westminster Connects list. 
 

2. That arrangements be made for Members to visit voluntary sector 
organisations in Westminster. 

 
3. That the Cabinet Member arranges to meet with the Chair to discuss potential 

topics to add to the P&S Work Programme for the forthcoming year. 
 

4. That the following items be reported regularly in the Cabinet Member Report: 

 the status of covid in care homes and disability settings. 

 update on the work and decisions of the Integrated Care Board (ICB). 

 the on-going budget pressures on Adult Social Care Health. 

 

Page 4



5. Policy and Scrutiny Portfolio Overview: Cabinet Member for Young People, 
Learning and Leisure  

 
5.1 The Cabinet Member provided an overview of his portfolio including its service 

areas, priorities for the year ahead and key service updates/issues. The Cabinet 
Member responded to questions on the following topics: 

 

 the financial pressures resulting from falling rolls in primary schools. 

 the recent Ofsted inspection and how Ofsted had been particularly impressed 
with the approaches to missing, exploitation, risk of gang affiliation, trafficking, 
modern slavery and PREVENT. 

 the importance of the new school uniform scheme to address the cost-of-living 
crisis and confirmation of future funding for the continuation of the scheme.   

 future proposals for the expansion of federations and the key benefits of primary 
schools remaining single entities in law and with separate budgets but having a 
single Governing Board and unified leadership team. 

 the work commenced to combat the increase youth violence. 

 the potential impact of the census on available funding for schools. 

 the monthly monitoring of the Passenger Transport service and the importance of 
promoting the independent travel scheme. 

 the development of the £2.4 Culture Fund proposal. 
 

5.2 Other issues discussed were the publication of the Children and Young People’s 
Mental Health Report, Sayers Croft, the Everyone Active Contract and the 
development of social value in leisure centres. 

 

5.3 The Committee very much welcomed the additional £239,000 being made 
available to run a rapid grant funding programme in partnership with the Young 
Westminster Foundation to develop a fully flexible offer consisting of activities 
and food over the summer holiday period 2022. 

 
5.4 ACTIONS:  
 

1. That the Children and Young People Mental Health Task Group Report be  
  published and that an update on the recommendations contained in the report 

be circulated to the Committee. 
 
2. That details of how the schools were managing the school uniform scheme be 

circulated to the Committee. 
 

3. That the links to past Children and Adult P&S Committee Agenda Packs and 
minutes be emailed to the Committee.  

 
4. That the Access to Culture Report 2019 and an update on the 

recommendations contained in the report be circulated to the Committee.  
 

Page 5



5. That parents be consulted quickly on any proposals regarding their children’s 
primary schools becoming federations.  
 

6. That an update on Westminster Adult Education Service (WAES) relocation to 
a new building be circulated to the Committee. 

 
7. That data on school exclusions in Westminster schools be circulated to the 

Committee.  
 
8. That the Cabinet Member arranges to meet with the Chair to discuss potential 

topics to add to the P&S Work Programme for the forthcoming year.  
 
6. 2022/2023 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
6.1 The Committee reviewed potential items to be prioritised for the 2022/23 work 

programme, which included focusing on: 
 

 the financial pressures resulting from falling rolls in primary schools 

 the implication to pupils/schools of the federation of two governing bodies 

 access to services for all adults with learning difficulties 

 the NHS (including primary care) 

 the services provided by the voluntary sector 

 the mental health strategy 

 the cost of living/digital poverty/digital inclusion.   
 
6.2 The Committee noted the importance of having a balanced work programme and 

feeding into Council policy.   
 
6.3 ACTIONS: 
 

1. That the Annual Youth Justice Plan be reviewed at the September meeting. 
 

2. That detailed data/financial implications for services be included in reports.   
 

3. That discussions regarding potential topics continue outside of the meeting.   
 
4. The Chair encouraged Members to email their ideas for topics/items for the 

Committee Work Programme, a Task Group or even for individual Member 
scrutiny to the Scrutiny Officer. 

 
7. TERMINATION OF MEETING 
 
7 .1 The meeting ended at 8.14pm. 
 
 
CHAIRMAN _____________________  DATE ________________ 

Page 6



 
 
  
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Children and Adults, Public Health 

and Voluntary Sector Policy and 

Scrutiny Committee  

Date: 12 September 2022 

Portfolio: Young People, Learning and Leisure 

The Report of: Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet Member for Young 

People Learning and Leisure 

Report Author and Contact 

Details: 

Patrick Ryan 

pryan@westminster.gov.uk 

 

1. Key decisions made in the preceding period since my last Policy & Scrutiny report dated 12 

July 2022  

 12 August 2022 – Direct Award of Travel Care contracts for Children and Adults. This 

was an urgent decision required for the provision of transport for home to school travel 

care for children with special educational needs and vulnerable adults to day activities 

after the provider advised they would cease services in August. More information can 

be found here. 

 

2. The following report includes my priorities and delivery progress to date of the new 
administration: 
 

2.1 Children’s Services 

Ofsted visit focussing on safeguarding against extra-familial harm 
In June 2022, Children’s Services received a themed focused visit by Ofsted, looking at Extra Familial 

Abuse, often referred to as Contextual Safeguarding. The inspection looked at many areas of work 

including child sexual and criminal exploitation, children missing from home, care, and school, risks 

associated with gangs, radicalisation, trafficking, and modern slavery. Inspectors spoke to children, 

young adults, workers and managers, and scrutinised performance management and quality-

assurance information and children’s case records.  

In a letter published 20th July 2022, Ofsted Inspectors were positive about Westminster's leadership 

and partnership working “Protecting children and supporting their families are at the heart of a 

whole-council, partnership, and community-based approach… Senior officers and elected members 

of the council ensure that a collective responsibility for safeguarding children is embedded across 

the council.”  

Key Headline findings: 

• Children at risk of extra-familial harm receive excellent support and services in 

Westminster. 

• Senior leaders and partners critically evaluate the impact partnership work is having on 

improving children’s lives and strive to identify children who are at risk but invisible to 

services.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1696


2 
 

• Westminster’s culture of compassion and high support is mirrored by staff in their work 

with children.  

• A consistent quality of practice, a clearly articulated value base, effective professional 

development strategies, and the stability of a diverse, skilled and caring workforce 

provide a solid foundation for the work to improve children’s lives and safeguard them 

from extra-familial harm. 

No recommendations for improvement were identified by Ofsted, though we continue to work 

tirelessly to build upon excellence to ensure that our safeguarding practices are as effective as 

possible. 

School Uniform Support Fund launched to support families in need 
Following the approval of £85,550 funding for a new School Uniform Support Fund, the School 

Finance Team in Children’s Services have successfully communicated with Primary schools in the 

borough and distributed funding to support families in need with the cost of school uniform. The 

scheme offers the highest amount of support compared with similar schemes across London. On 

14th July, direct payments totalling £77,539 were made to all 41 primary schools in the borough 

based on the number of children eligible for Free School Meals. Of this, £9,889 was allocated to 

support the families of 319 children entering reception, at an allocation of £31 per child. A further 

£67,650 has been allocated to support the families of 451 outgoing year 6 children who are moving 

to secondary school, at a rate of £150 per child. 

Once schools re-open in September, the Council will make contact to establish how well the 

distribution of funds went and support schools with ensuring that families that are eligible receive 

the funding.  

Holiday Activity and Food Fund and Additional Offer 
Through the Department for Education’s Holiday Activity and Food Programme (HAF), £440,000 has 

been allocated to fund 3200 summer holiday spaces for Westminster’s, school age, Free School Meal 

(FSM) eligible children.  

To further address concerns around the effects of the cost-of-living crisis on holiday hunger, 

Westminster City Council has provided an additional £239,000 to enable children under five, and 

young people aged 16-18 (or 16-25 with additional needs) to access holiday and food provision for 

free, as well as those who fall just short of the FSM eligibility criteria but are experiencing hardship. 

It has also enabled organisations providing beneficial activities and food who fall outside of the strict 

requirements of the HAF programme (where providers must offer a minimum of 4 hours daily for 4 

days a week for 4 weeks) to provide free activities and meals.  

The additional funding has provided an extra 2700 activity spaces, delivered by some 44 

organisations. 11 ongoing HAF providers have accessed this additional funding to extend their offer 

to children and young people who need support but do not meet the FSM criteria. Providers used 

the funding to offer a range of workshops and play activities, such as a week-long camp at the 

London Zoo, tutoring sessions, sporting programmes, cooking workshops, cartoon-making 

workshops, and a careers fair at a library, offering initial interviews with local employers, free 

professional photography and CV writing workshops. Other providers of free summer activities used 

the funding to introduce free meals for children and young people, such as Somerset House’s ‘This 

Bright Land’ activity programme.  

At the time of writing, the holiday activities are in full swing, and colleagues are currently 

undertaking monitoring visits of the various providers.  

Page 10



3 
 

 

Launch of the Bi-borough School Inclusion Strategy 
Children’s Services has officially launched and published the Bi-Borough School Inclusion Strategy 

2022. The Strategy was developed in collaboration with partners across the system including 

schools, alternative provision settings, Early Help, Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, and 

voluntary and community sector organisations. This ambitious strategy sets out our collective aims 

to: 

• Reduce the number of children and young people being removed from mainstream 

education as a result of their behaviour. 

• Address factors that lead to specific groups of children and young people being 

disproportionately affected by exclusion. 

• Drive a whole system commitment to work with children and young people at risk of 

exclusion in a trauma-informed way. 

• Improve outcomes for children and young people who are excluded. 

• Improve reintegration rates from alternative provision back into mainstream education. 

We know that there are no easy fixes for creating truly inclusive learning environments and that 

turning our ambitions into reality will require us to strengthen our partnerships and continue to 

learn from one another. On the 13th of July 2022, we held a launch event for Kensington and 

Chelsea schools at Chelsea Academy to bring together colleagues from across the system to share 

best practices and hear from schools who have successfully implemented trauma-informed 

approaches. This event had a secondary-school age focus and we will be hosting a second launch 

event in September at a Primary School in Westminster. 

The success of the Strategy is being tracked by our Education Partnership Board that is chaired by 

the Director of Children’s Services and has representation from colleagues across the Education 

system. 

Supporting Ukrainian Arrivals 
To date 408 Ukrainian’s have arrived in Westminster under the Homes for Ukraine Scheme, of whom 

108 are children under 18 years old. A further 225 Ukrainian’s have been issued visas and are due to 

arrive in the borough, whilst a further 133 have visa applications that are pending.  

On 15 July 2022, the Homes for Ukraine Scheme was expanded to allow eligible children and minors 

under the age of 18, who had already applied for visas, to come to the UK without a parent or 

guardian and stay with a “known sponsor”. On 10 August 2022, the visa application process for new 

applications from eligible children opened. Children arriving under this scheme are able to live in the 

UK for up to three years and access education, healthcare, benefits, employment and other support.  

For unaccompanied minors coming over on the Homes for Ukraine scheme, the safeguarding checks 

on a sponsor must be completed before a new visa application for an eligible child can be started. 

This includes: 

 Home Office security/criminal record checks 

 DBS checks (on all members of sponsor household aged 16+) 

 Accommodation suitability check 

 Council led assessment including: 

o A suitability assessment of sponsorship arrangements in accordance with the 

Guidance on Private Fostering 

o Confirmation of expectations including in relation to the duration of sponsorship 

Page 11



4 
 

o Written confirmation that the prospective sponsor understands the expectations of 

them 

o Councils have the discretion to veto a sponsor if they are deemed unsuitable 

This is a long-term commitment for the council, as once the child is in the UK, ongoing visits will 

need to be made to ensure that the arrangements continue to be satisfactory and in the child’s best 

interest. This should be in line with the guidance for Private Fostering arrangements. At present, we 

have a relatively low number of applicants from unaccompanied minors, but we may see this rise 

over time as applications remain open. 

Ukrainian Welcome event  
On the 21st July, the Bi-borough Ukrainian response team in partnership with the Ukrainian 

Welcome Centre hosted a welcome event for Ukrainian arrivals. The event was held at the Ukrainian 

Catholic Cathedral and was attended by more than 150 Ukrainians and their sponsors (including 

children). Colleagues from across council departments, local health bodies, and voluntary and 

community sector organisations were on hand to provide information, advice and guidance.  It was a 

successful event where Ukrainian guests were able to get advice and information on vaccines, GP 

and wider health services, school admissions, the family hubs, youth services, voluntary sector 

services, housing, ESOL, employment, leisure, and libraries. Extremely positive feedback was 

received from all those who attended.  

From speaking with our Ukrainian guests, service representatives were able to identify key areas of 

demand and challenges facing guests. This information has been collated, and staff working on the 

Bi-borough Ukraine response are exploring measures to address current and emerging issues such as 

extending the ESOL offer.  

 

2.2 Westminster Adult Education Service (WAES) 

Supporting residents into Digital Careers 

WAES has continued its work in this area and has been awarded funds by the GLA to run Digital Skills 

Bootcamps. These will begin in September 2022 with a target to train and support up to 75 people. 

Supporting Ukrainian Families 

Demand for English as a Second Language (ESOL) classes has increased due to the needs of the 
recently arrived Ukrainian refugees. We are running summer classes at our Lisson Grove centre to 
ensure continuity of study and support.  We have now supported around 150 individuals and 
continue to deal with daily enquiries. 
 
Department for Education (DfE) Consultation Paper 
On 21 July 2022, the DfE published their second consultation on Funding and Accountability for the 
Further Education sector and the deadline to respond is 21 September. WAES is working with HOLEX 
(the Adult and Community Learning membership body) to prepare a response that reflects concerns 
at a local, regional and national level. We will also be liaising with the GLA to understand their 
position on this, as devolved authorities may have a choice on whether there are aspects of national 
policy that they will flex to ensure that local needs are met. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



5 
 

2.3 Culture 

Culture Fund 
A Culture Fund proposal is being prepared for a Cabinet Member Decision that will reallocate 

unspent MyWestminster Funds to fund cultural initiatives, in partnership with local community 

stakeholders, over the next four years. The fund is to be part of the Fairer Westminster strategy to 

support the delivery of ambitions to widen opportunities for participation in culture, improve the 

wellbeing of our residents and enhance the local visitor offer through a range of targeted 

programmes. 

Art of London’s Brighter Future Public Art Project 

Heart of London Business Alliance’s Art of London programme launched the Brighter Future public 

art project on 9 August in partnership with National Gallery X and comedian Harry Hill, supported by 

the council. Art installations are appearing in Piccadilly Circus, Leicester Square, Waterloo Place and 

St James’s Market until the autumn.  

Summer on the Square with the National Gallery 

The council has worked with the National Gallery to facilitate a free festival of art on the North 

Terrace, building on the success of 2021’s ‘Sketch in the Square’, part of the inaugural Inside Out 

Festival. Visitors can take part in free, daily creative activities to inspire them to create their own 

masterpieces and all sessions are on a drop-in basis for all ages and abilities. Large scale immersive 

installations inspired by the Gallery’s collection will also pop up outside the gallery.  

2.4 Leisure 

Seymour Leisure Centre 
Willmott Dixon have been appointed as the build contractor for Seymour Centre. The earliest date 
that the Seymour Centre could close for works to begin is in Summer 2023, though this could be 
later in 2023. This date depends on achieving planning permission and the site surveys which will 
bring to light any technical complications. 
 
Everyone Active Contract 
Draft legal terms for the new Deed of Variation to the contract have been shared with Sports Leisure 
Management. The service is talking to their legal team about changes relating to points of feedback 
around the impacts of future site closures on minimum income guarantee.  
 
Active Westminster Strategy 

Work has begun to develop the Active Westminster Strategy 2023+. A core part of the strategy is 
about services and resources being available to all. Stakeholder consultation will commence in 
September with an aim of finalising the strategy in November. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Children & Adults, Public Health & 

Voluntary Sector Policy and 

Scrutiny Committee  

Date: 12 September 2022 

Portfolio: Adult Social Care, Public Health and Voluntary 

Sector 

The Report of: Councillor Nafsika Butler-Thalassis 

Report Author and Contact 

Details: 

Maria Burton, Portfolio Advisor 

mburton@westminster.gov.uk 

 

1. Key decisions made in the preceding period since my last Policy & Scrutiny report dated 12 

July:  

 12 August 2022 – Direct Award of Travel Care contracts for Children and Adults (joint 

decision with Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet Member for Young People, Learning and Leisure) 

 

2. The following report includes my priorities and delivery progress to date of the new 
administration.  
 
2.1. First 100 Days Update 

Launch of digital social care accounts for residents 

The pilot for digital social care accounts has launched, enabling residents to manage Direct 
Payments and purchase their care services online. Residents testing the system can use it as both 
a marketplace for choosing care from contracted providers, and as a platform to make a payment 
for any other service. For example, this might be for a Personal Assistant, or for a group of 
residents to club together and purchase a service collectively. The pilot will be expanded 
incrementally as more is learned about residents’ experiences and preferences using the 
platform, with an aim to accumulate 50 users before forming recommendations for future use. 
 
Public Health Grant spending 

The programme of investing the Public Health reserves in initiatives which address the impact of 
COVID-19 and the health inequalities it exposed has been reviewed in line with the Manifesto. 
£1.2m has been released from the Public Health Grant and reallocated to the Capital programme 
to support important environmental changes in our most deprived areas. The purpose is to make 
healthy choices the easiest choice, and activity is still being prioritised. These projects will 
increase the opportunities for residents to be physically active, enjoy green spaces and cycle 
more, whilst also prioritising neighbourhood projects which bring about better public health 
outcomes. 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

Food poverty 
 
The Cost of Living Strategy, launched on Wednesday 20th July 2022, highlights at least £5.5m being 
targeted towards households in most need of support. This includes funding from Government 
and projects funded from the Public Health Grant including:      
 

 Extending the Green Doctors service to continue supporting residents with energy advice over 

the summer. 

 Increasing food bank and food pantry access with £140k of funding. Data from North 

Paddington Foodbank shows that, while their core customer profile is similar, their user 

volume rose by 157% between December and May, with 225 of the 730 households using the 

Foodbank having never used one before. Additional funding will be used to increase the 

capacity of North Paddington Foodbank to respond to need as well as start-up costs for the 

establishment of a number of new community pantries. 

 Westminster Employment Service are being funded to increase financial capability support 

and train frontline staff to provide additional support and signposting. 

 
2.2. In-year Budget Pressures 

 
The forecast outturn for quarter 1 is a breakeven position. This position is underpinned by an 
assumption that funding from Discharge to Assess (D2A) will continue to the end of July 2022 and 
a new funding arrangement to be negotiated on a recurring basis for the remaining months. The 
directorate continues to lobby and collaborate on the optimal model for further funds to offset 
increased financial pressures with our health partner Northwest London Integrated Care System 
(ICS). Last year, one-off funding from D2A and covid grants helped the directorate to remain 
within budget and report a less than 1% underspend.   
 
Budgetary challenges remain this financial year, in part, due to an increase in demand for services 
but also due to an increase in complexities in people’s needs and the ongoing impact of Covid-
19. Spend on homecare packages and residential and nursing placements is expected to increase 
compared to last year.  
 
The inflationary challenge facing the wider economy is anticipated to have an impact on the adult 
social care provider market. The council has a responsibility under the Care Act to shape and 
maintain an efficient and effective market of services for meeting care and support needs in the 
local area. The directorate will continuously look at ways to mitigate the impact and lower the 
cost burden for the council but, the current situation is likely to make this challenging.  
 
The directorate is committed to managing agreed efficiencies of £2.745m for 2022-23 and is 
expected to achieve them in full. A significant proportion of the efficiencies will be delivered 
through an approach called “Promoting Independence”. This approach includes helping service 
users return to the Borough from more expensive care elsewhere, better use of community 
equipment to make sure that reablement is successful, and other measures to achieve positive 
outcomes and value for money.  
 
The Adult Social Care (ASC) Charging Reforms, due to be implemented by October 2023, will bring 
further pressures. Work is underway to begin to quantify those pressures. A key milestone is 14th 
October 2022 when the output of the Fair Cost of Care exercise will be submitted to the 

Page 16



3 
 

Department of Health and Social Care. In this year, the council is in receipt of £900k for this work 
and up to 25% of this funding can be used to offset the cost of completing this exercise.  
 
2.3. JSNA on Health Inequalities   

 
The scope of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) on health inequalities is being 
developed as part of a cross council approach to public health and will link with existing and 
emerging work programmes aimed at addressing health inequalities to ensure it informs action 
and delivers health improvements.  
 
By utilising and linking health and local authority data, and working with local communities, 
understanding of local health inequalities has grown. This knowledge is underpinning current 
work programmes to improve the uptake of vaccinations and screening, as well as how the wider 
determinants of health and complex public health issues such as obesity are addressed. For 
example, an NHS England funded pilot will be launched this year to test if offering childhood 
immunisations in trusted community venues has a positive impact on uptake. The pilot has been 
informed by a deep dive of the data by GP practice and engagement from all stakeholders. 
  
2.4. Integrated Care System Update  

 
NHS Integrated Care Systems went live on 1st July 2022. The North West London (NWL) Integrated 
Care Board (ICB) which is the decision making, budget holding, statutory NHS body now has a 
published constitution. Membership of the board and representation from local authorities is 
paramount, ensuring decisions are made as close to communities as possible. There remains a 
concerted effort by local authorities to lobby for greater representation on the board and working 
groups.  
 
There will be representation from each Place/Borough at the ICB and Integrated Care Partnership 
(ICP), the roles and nominations are currently being discussed and confirmed over the coming 
month. As a minimum the Bi-borough will require a local authority representative at both. The 
inaugural ICP meeting is scheduled for 27th September 2022.    
 
NWL ICB has recently launched its Health Inequalities Engagement Framework and has begun 
using this as a way to inform and develop the NWL Strategy.  
 
The Bi-borough Place Based arrangements are in mobilisation phase with the Health and 
Wellbeing Board as the accountable board for our health and wellbeing strategy and outcomes 
for our residents. An integrated governance and delivery structure will report to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, aimed to be fully operational by the end of September 2022.  A Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy is in development for borough residents to be launched later this year.    
 
2.5. Mental Health 

 
In July 2022, a stakeholder event was held with statutory and non-statutory partners and chaired 
by the Lead Member. The purpose of this event was to benefit from their established connections 
to reach out to the local community to help in understanding the areas where the future mental 
health service offer can be strengthened – and using their contributions to help develop the 
forthcoming mental health strategy.  
 

Page 17



4 
 

 
2.6. Learning Disabilities 

 
As of July 2022, and following a meeting with the Lead Member, the Direct Payment system in 
Westminster has been expanded to ensure service users and their carers are able to take 
advantage of being able to pool their personal budgets to better support purchasing services. It 
offers increased access for the following, as examples: 
 

 Attending leisure activities, such as sports club or gym as a  

 Group access to a club around a particular hobby 

 Setting up a shared opportunity, such as gardening, or managing an allotment 

 Personal Assistant (PA) support for personal care, and general support to remain independent 
and safe 

 Hiring a PA or other staff member to help make the above options a reality 
 
The service continues to work with local authority Commissioners, all providers and ASC social 
work staff to encourage uptake of this option.  
 
2.7. Hot Weather Preparedness  

 
The Council’s response to heatwaves falls under the Business Continuity processes for the welfare 
of staff, and under the Bi-borough Humanitarian Assistance Board for the welfare of service users 
and the general public.  
  
In response to the last two heat health alerts, the following actions were taken by ASC and Public 
Health in collaboration with colleagues in Children’s social care and Housing: 
 

 Information sent out to residents via council channels advising them how to prepare for and 
manage during the heatwave 

 Information cascaded to adults and children’s social care providers, schools and early years 
settings and registered providers of social housing. This contained advice on carrying out 
heatwave welfare checks on vulnerable people. There were no escalations to health services 
or social care commissioning teams during the two heatwaves 

 During the first heatwave (level 4 alert), staff in ASC, Housing, the Community Alarm Service 
and the Children with Disabilities Service carried out heatwave welfare calls to the most 
vulnerable people known to those services who were not receiving any care visits. No serious 
concerns were identified, but the vast majority of people called were very appreciative of the 
contact 

 Colleagues in Growth, Planning and Housing responsible for Rough Sleeping Services activated 
their Severe Weather Emergency Plan (SWEP). The Hot weather SWEP includes extended 
opening hours for day centres, some with facilities for cooling showers, enhanced outreach 
activity with provisions such as water, sun cream, etc, collaboration with other street-based 
services to identify and escalate serious health issues. There was also a veterinary presence 
on the Strand for pets on the street. 

 
In response to the particular challenges of Westminster’s asylum-seeking population living in 
contingency hotels, Public Health created guidance and a checklist for this kind of 
accommodation. This will be used to improve longer-term planning for heatwaves. Its content is 

Page 18



5 
 

also applicable to other kinds of supported living and is being shared by Housing colleagues as 
appropriate. 
 
2.8. Polio Vaccination Rollout  

 
All children aged 1 to 9 years old in London are being offered an additional dose of polio vaccine, 
as announced on Thursday 10th August 2022. Families will be contacted by the NHS to ask to book 
an appointment if their child is eligible for an extra dose. 
 
This follows identification of the polio virus in sewage samples collected from the London Beckton 
Sewage Treatment Works between February and June this year. Further sewage sampling 
identified at least one positive sample of the poliovirus in Barnet, Brent, Camden, Enfield, 
Hackney, Haringey, Islington and Waltham Forest.  
 
The additional dose of vaccine to children aged 1 to 9 will either be an extra, booster dose or just 
to bring them up to date with their routine vaccinations. The vaccination programme will start 
with the eight boroughs and be followed by rollout across all boroughs. 
  
NWL NHS have been carrying out work around capacity and delivery planning and are in contact 
with local authorities on messaging. Once the plans for the rollout are finalised, Public Health will 
work with Communications, Community Engagement and Children’s Services to promote 
awareness and uptake of the vaccination by our families. 
  
Sewage sampling has been stepped-up across London with plans to sample several other sites 
across England. No patients have been diagnosed with polio to date, as the virus has just been 
detected in sewage. The risks to the general population are still assessed as low due to high 
vaccine coverage rates overall. 
 
2.9. Monkeypox 

 
Monkeypox is a rare infectious disease, usually associated with travel to west and central Africa. 
Since May 2022 there has been an unusual number of cases increasing within the UK. However, 
the overall risk to the UK population remains low and there have been no deaths in the UK to 
date. 
  
Anyone can get monkeypox, but currently most cases are in men who are gay, bisexual or who 
have sex with men. The infection is usually mild and self-limiting, but a person remains infectious 
to others until their lesions are fully healed. Most people will not require treatment.  
  
Vaccination against smallpox can be used for both pre- and post-exposure prevention and it is up 
to 85% effective in preventing monkeypox. Preventing infection also requires measures to ensure 
individuals do not come into contact with infected people and includes self-isolation and 
appropriate hygiene and infection control measures. 
  
Westminster has a significant night-time economy for gay, bisexual and men who have sex with 
men, as well residents who come into the groups most at risk of being exposed to the virus. 
  
 
 
 

Page 19



6 
 

Actions taken so far 
 
Local sexual health services have provided venues with guidance to minimise spread, including 
information and guidance being shared with all high-risk venues in Soho ahead of Pride. A local 
pathway has been put in place for people to self-isolate if they are unable to do so safely where 
they normally live and cannot make alternative arrangements e.g., our rough sleeping 
population.  
 
Westminster’s services which are highly respected across London, continue to be under severe 
pressure with the demands of the monkeypox outbreak and the stress it is putting on their ability 
to maintain their normal sexual health service offer. Strategies to support services that have been 
put in place include a short-term increase in resource to help with:  
  

 Vaccination capacity 

 Increasing primary care provided family planning services to reduce pressure on sexual health 
clinics; and  

 Offering to support services, alongside other London boroughs, with the loss of income from 
not providing the same level of general sexual health services due to the focus on monkeypox. 

  
Nationally, there is a supply shortage of the smallpox MVA vaccine as international production 
catches up with new demand. The London region is working to agree a re-prioritisation of the use 
of the remaining stock whilst awaiting re-supply. Re-supply is not expected until late 
September/early October. In the meantime, Westminster’s sexual health services will continue 
to vaccinate those at the highest risk with remaining stock and work with partners to ensure that 
those who are not already in touch with services know where and how to access vaccination 
when the new supply arrives. 
 

3. Voluntary Sector 

3.1 Food and Fuel Poverty Network 

The network has met with foodbanks, community pantries, and advice services monthly to hear 

directly about changes in demand, share approaches, identify gaps and support referrals. The 

data from the network has been used to shape the Cost of Living Strategy.  

 

3.2 Community Investment Review and Strategy 

A review of voluntary sector funding has been conducted across the Council, collating all 

contracts and grants to the voluntary sector, £33 million in contracts and £3 million in grants. 

Engagement has been undertaken with the sector on what is working and what needs 

improving, and a strategy is under development which will look at simplifying funding streams 

for grants. Work is underway on clarifying the VCS rent policy, maintenance work, and asset 

transfer policy; standardising contract and grant procedures to include core funding and a 

consistent council approach; identifying ways to bring in more funding for the VCS. 

 

3.3 Westminster Connects 

Working more closely with the Volunteer team at One Westminster, regular volunteer 

opportunities are sent out once a fortnight to recruit volunteers for all the voluntary sector. The 

volunteer opportunities run by the council to support vulnerable residents, including shopping, 

walking companions and dog walking and fostering have increased with a gardening service. A 

Page 20



7 
 

home care volunteer service is being developed with Adult Social Care to help vulnerable 

residents with ‘life admin’ and to make a light meal for them. Westminster Connects will be 

reviewing what it can do to provide more support with the Cost of Living Crisis. A new platform 

is under development to make it easier for volunteers and community organisations to advertise 

opportunities, and a review of Westminster Connects will run over the autumn. 

 

3.4 Community Contribution Fund 

Funding of £400,000 was awarded in May to 26 community projects supporting young people, 

reducing isolation or providing support around homelessness. A living impact report is being 

developed of short films of people who have benefited from the projects, as well as of the 

community organisations who run them. Over the next 6 months we will have a project manager 

from the Civil Service fast stream working on ways to increase the income to the Community 

Contribution Fund. 

3.5 VCS Contracts 

New contracts began in July with Healthwatch, run by the Advocacy Project, and with One 

Westminster for Infrastructure Support and Volunteer Development. Additional funding was 

awarded to have 4 more case workers at CAB due to the increase in demand because of the Cost 

of Living crisis. A review has begun on Westminster advice services to inform what is needed in 

terms of advice services for the next 5 years. The new services will be co-designed with advice 

services. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Westminster’s Youth Justice  
Strategic Partnership Plan 
2022-2025 

A Pathway to sustaining positive choices 
 

  

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



 

2 
 

  Contents          

1. Section  1 Page 

 Forward 3-3 

 Introduction, vision and strategy 4-5 

 Local Context 6-7 

 Child First           7-7 

 Voice of the child    8-9 

2. Section 2  

 Governance, leadership and partnership arrangements 10-11 

3.  Section 3   

 Resources and Services 12-12 

4. Section 4  

 Achievements against 2019-2022 Youth Justice Plan 13-26 

5.  Section 5  

 Performance against  National Performance Indicators 27-29 

 Overview of Caseload 30-37 

 Responding to overrepresentation  38-38 

 Priorities  39-46 

6. Section 6  

 National Standards 47-51 

7. Section 7  

 Challenges, risks and issues 52-53 

8. Section 8  

 Service improvement plan 54-61 

9.  Section 9  

 Evidence-based practice and innovation 62-64 

10. Section 10  

 Looking forward 65-65 

11. Section 11  

 Sign off and submission 66-66 

12.  Section 12  

 Appendices 67-78 

 

P
age 24



 

3 
 

  Section 1  
 

  Forward  
 

I am pleased to introduce the Westminster Youth Justice Strategic Plan for 2022-2025 -A Pathway to Sustaining Positive Choices. 

As we have now come out of the Covid-19 pandemic, Westminster Youth Offending Team (YOT) has continued to demonstrate resilience and determination to support 
children, young people, and their families. 

In Westminster, we have committed to adopting a whole system approach to ensuring our communities stay safe and healthy. We continue to focus on developing and 
learning from our systemic practice model, which prioritises the whole family and relationships within the system. Parents and children and young people’s voices are more 
visible in our systemic assessment and co-production of the subsequent plans.  

We look forward to incorporating the Ministry of Justice’s proposed YOT Partnership Key Performance Indicators together with the increased funding in recognition of the 
complex work carried out by the YOT.  

Our Youth Crime Prevention and Partnership Board (YCPP) exemplify good governance, offering challenge and support ensuring our action plan is robust in meeting the needs 
of the children and young people we are working with. Some key themes and issues around racial disparity -disproportionality, engagement with education, together with 
strategies on prevention of Serious Youth Violence, and the development of our drugs strategy which spans across many council departments, are key focal points going 
forward.  

I am proud of the continued partnership work within the Westminster YOT which is reflected in the offer made to children and young people through this plan. 

 

 

Sarah Newman 

Executive Director of Children’s Services and Chair of the Youth Crime Prevention Partnership 

P
age 25



 

4 
 

 

 

  Introduction  
 

Our strategy is underpinned by a relational and trauma informed approach. We believe that by focusing on understanding the reasons for the behaviour, rather than just the 

result of the behaviour, children and young people will be supported to make and sustain change. We recognise that many of the children and young people known to the 

Youth Offending Team have unmet and undiagnosed needs, which have impacted on their life choices. The number of children and young people receiving a service from the 

Youth Offending Team in Westminster has reduced over the last two years but the complexity, nature of the offences and rates of reoffending remain a challenge. 

Understanding this offending behaviour through a systemic lens has enhanced the capability of our staff to respond appropriately to identified issues. To ensure our staff are 

equipped with the best skills to meet local need we have invested in ARC (Attachment, Regulation, Competency) training, providing a trauma informed framework that 

complements our existing systemic approach as well as a greater focus on understanding speech and language and mental health needs.  

  Vision  
 

Our vision, as a partnership, is that children and young people at risk of, or involved in, offending behaviour are supported to lead safe, healthy lives and are helped to reach 
their full potential and fully contribute to their community. Every child and young person’s needs are prioritised, services are tailored to ensure the right support is offered at 
the right time.  
 
Our work will be relational and achieved through an active partnership that puts a renewed focus on restorative and trauma informed practice whilst always balancing our 
safeguarding responsibilities for young people with the needs of protecting the wider community. 

  Strategy  

 
OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

In working to achieve our outcomes we have agreed the following underlying principles: 

P
age 26



 

5 
 

• Child / Young Person first: always prioritising the best interests of the children / young people, recognising their needs, capacities and potential. 

• Adhering to National Standards: using the new National Standards and Local Standards for youth justice as a framework for our work. 

• Relational: our practice will be relational and informed by systemic and trauma informed theory. We will work within the whole family context to create sustainable 

change rather than reacting to individual ‘issues,’ working to understand the causes of behaviours rather than the result of it. 

• Collaboration and co-production: working closely with relevant partner agencies in assessing the needs of young people and in helping them to achieve their potential. 

• Independence and resilience: supporting children / young people to make choices and decisions that will enable them to thrive. 

 Evidence of impact: we will choose interventions based on acknowledged evidence of what works and for only as long as necessary. 

 Investment in our staff across the partnership: we will invest in our shared workforce exploring opportunities to develop our staff and enhance service delivery. 

 Safety: we will balance the needs of the young person with those of the wider community to ensure safety for all. 

 Victim focused: we will use restorative approaches to prevent re-offending.  

 

SHARED BEHAVIOURS 

 

We have agreed   to share a common set of behaviours in implementing our strategy. These are based on what we believe are vital in making this shift ‘from offending to 

achieving’ and are also shared across the Early Help Partnership: 

1. Professional and compassionate curiosity: with each other as providers and children, young people and their families to understand the reason behind behaviours. 

2. Being able to connect quickly with individuals: give families the space and time to process what has happened to them without adding shame and guilt. Doing this 

by use of voice and body language, which is attuned to the needs of the individual. 

3. Everyone as a leader: able to respond promptly to family need without referring on. 

4. Open and flexible: to new approaches with families. 

5. Involving families and young people: in what happens and understanding how they may experience our systems. 

6. Challenge: each other on these behaviours in a positive and supportive way. 

7. Self-awareness: ensuring that as professionals we are self-aware and reflective through self-help and using management support. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 27



 

6 
 

 

  Local Context  
 
The landscape in which the Youth Offending team operates   
  
Borough Picture 
 

 42,783 children and young people aged 0 to 19 years old live in the 

borough (using GLA figures produced for Westminster City Council (WCC) 

corporate). 

 51% of young people at secondary school and 61% of children at primary 

school speak a first language other than English. 

 3529 pupils in Westminster schools have a special educational need (16% 

of state school population). 

 36% of children at primary schools receive Free School Meals. 

 We are currently supporting 172 Looked After Children. 

 67% of our Looked After Children are aged between 14 and 17 years. 

 26% of our Looked After Children are unaccompanied asylum-seeking 

children. 

 91% of schools are good or outstanding in our borough. 

 98% of early years registered providers are rated either good or 

outstanding. 

 70.6% of children achieve a good level of development at foundation stage. 

 Westminster ranks 134 on the Multiple Deprivation index (out of 317 Local 

Authorities.) 

 899 EHCP and 2631 SEN support (all WCC schools from April 2022 census). 

 22,211 pupils in all WCC schools of which 13,473 are WCC residents. 

 Latest published attendance data – Autumn 2021/2022 93.7% attendance 

in all WCC schools (comparted to 93.1% National data). 

 

P
age 28



 

7 
 

The near-identical maps of deprivation and young offenders per lower layer super 
output area (LSOA) highlight the significant disparity in wealth of the local 
population, which has often impacted on the nature of offending in the local area.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What does a typical YOT case look like?  

 Over representation of Black, Asian and minority ethnic  category of 
children and young people open to the YOT is  80% (of which 36% ‘Other’ 
category being predominantly ethnically Middle Eastern/North African).  

 Typical caseload age between 15-17 years (81%). 

 Received a Court disposal (55%.)   

 For violence (26%) or drug-related (23%) offences.  

 Living in a family home with a parent or carer (83%).  

 In ETE (57.4%.) 

 37% of young people in the YOT were registered with an alternative 
provision at the point when assessed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 29



 

8 
 

  Child First Approach  

 

Westminster Youth Offending Team are committed and have adopted a child first approach in the work with children and young people. Evidence of this can be found in 

operational practice and strategic oversight. Some of the examples of this are: 

 Assessment, planning, and interventions are based on meaningful trusted relationships. Where the child or young person’s, parents/carers voice is evident throughout 
this.  

 We have adopted a single plan for a child or young people regardless on type of order he/she is on. The plan enables a pro-social identity and desistance from 
offending and builds on positive elements of the child or  young person’s life (appendix 1). We review the plan and agree a date with the child or young person that 
is based on presenting need so this can be as often as monthly or every three months. Every initial planning, review and closure meeting with a child or young person 
is chaired by a member of the management team. This has enabled getting to know those children coming to the YOT and their parent/carers better; and developing 
relationships that ensure a greater oversight of the work being delivered and measuring what impact or difference the interventions are making to support a child or 
young person towards developing a pro-social identity. 

 Every child or young person on arrival to the YOT receive a robust health, speech and language and mental health assessment from our dedicated team of health 
colleagues. These assessments are the foundation to understanding a child or young person’s needs ensuring that this is met during their assessment and intervention.  

 Referral Order and Pre-Sentence Report templates have been amended to adhere to child first offender second principles. 

 All volunteers receive as part of induction training on trauma informed approaches and systemic practice and receive on going peer supervision led by the Family 
Therapist and Health Team within the YOT.  

  Voice of the Child  

 

The voice of the child and young person is integral to the delivery of the Youth Offending Team. Opportunities to seek feedback are not limited to exit surveys but interwoven 

into everyday practice. Some of the examples of this are: 

 Seeking voice of the child or young person within all assessments; assetplus and systemic assessment. 

 Voice of the child or young person and their views captured within all initial, review and final planning meetings. 

 Children and young people are invited with their parent/carers to “back on track” meetings when there are barriers to engagement to hear from them directly what 

the challenges are and to support their engagement back into the YOT. 

 Surveys conducted after Referral Order panels and as exit surveys from the YOT. 

P
age 30



 

9 
 

 Feedback sought on the difference the systemic assessment is making for both children and young people and parent/carers. 

 Focus groups held with young people to gain feedback on youth offer and serious youth violence  JSNA (Joint Strategic Needs Analysis) for the development of the 

local drugs strategy  that was fed back to the YCPP. 

 Children and young people’s views sought on experiences of Covid-19 pandemic and stop and search which increased during lockdown which was fed into the YCPP 

and led to challenging the Police on data around stop and search of Black, Asian and Other Minority Ethnic group of young people in the local borough.  

Feedback is sought throughout a child or young person journey with the YOT. To ensure services that are in place are making a positive difference and impact on a child 

or young person’s life (examples of which can be found in appendix 2).

P
age 31



 

10 
 

  Section 2  
 

  Governance, leadership and partnership arrangements  
 

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 
The Youth Crime Prevention Partnership (YCPP) acts as the management board that oversees the local delivery of responsibilities under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 for 

Youth Justice Services. It is chaired by the Executive Director of Bi-Borough Family Services and provides strategic direction to prevent offending and re-offending by children 

and young people. It is accountable to the Safer Westminster Partnership.  

The YCPP is an active and well attended board; it receives regular performance reports, discusses emerging issues to find a partnership response, receives updates on audit 

compliance and the impact on service delivery as well as details of any safeguarding or critical incident reporting to the YJB. As a partnership board, the YCPP provides an 

opportunity to develop localised responses to maximise outcomes for children and young people who are: 

 At risk of offending and reoffending. 

 Victims of offending. 

 Entering Youth Justice System 

 
Details of the governance framework  can be found in appendix 3 and terms of reference of the YCPP in appendix 4. The  Executive Director for Bi-Borough Family Services 
sits on the Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnership and represents the Youth Offending issues in this arena.  
 

 

 

 

P
age 32



 

11 
 

  Youth Offending Team  
 

The Youth Offending Team (YOT) is a multi-agency team which includes a dedicated Educational Psychologist, Speech and Language Specialist and a Family Therapist whose 
roles have been embedded in the team from 2019.  The YOT  sits within Family Services and works closely with the full spectrum of Children’s Services from early intervention 
through to more specialist services i.e., Leaving Care, Looked after Children and Child Protection.  
 
Since 2021, the YOT, Leaving Care and Looked after Children’s team and the unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children’s team have re-located to a shared open plan office. 
This has enabled greater working relationships between services. The team now comes under the remit of the Head of Early Help, which brings together the full spectrum of 
prevention of crime to preventing reoffending. Both Community Resolutions and Triage are managed under Early Help. The team has also a commitment to understand 
children and young people’s health, speech and language and mental health needs and has a robust health therapy hub. 
 
The Youth Offending Team operates both operationally and strategically with partners to deliver its key objectives and support children and young people to achieve and 
sustain positive pathways and choices in life. 
 

  Partnership arrangements  
 

Effective partnership working underpins the work of the Youth Offending Team to secure good outcomes for young people. 

The Youth Offending Team is represented on a wide range of partnership boards / panels and contributes to the strategic planning and action plans of partners. This includes 

the Serious Youth Violence Task Group, the Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnership, Safer Westminster Partnership Board,  National Referral Mechanism (NRM) Pilot and  

Bi-Borough Drugs Strategy working group. Furthermore, there is YOT representation at various other partnership meetings  MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public Protection 

Arrangement),  VCC (Vulnerable Children Collaborative), Your Choice Project Board, YOT Project Systemic Assessment Board and Bi-Borough School Inclusion Strategy. 

There are effective links, operationally and strategically, between the Youth Offending Team and our Early Help Services, including family hubs and the range of youth hub 

services across Westminster. The team also work closely with the Integrated Gangs and Exploitation Unit and there is robust commitment to the prevention agenda, including 

engagement with communities, street outreach and information in schools, alternative education provisions and colleges. Ensuring there is focus at the highest level on 

preventing youth violence across all agencies working with children and young people. 

P
age 33



 

12 
 

  Section 3  
 

  Resources and Services  
 

The Youth Offending Team receives core funding from the Youth justice Board in addition to other grants with specialist partner agencies funding seconded 

staff based in YOT. The chart below summarises each of the funding sources. Within this budget the YOT will deliver the core statutory youth justice service 

as set out by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

Partner Contributions Staffing Costs (£) Payments in Kind (£) Other Delegated funds (£) Total (£) 

Local Authority  423,200   108,700 531,900 

Police Service   100,000   100,000 

National Probation Service 25,000   5,000 30,000 

Health   60,000   60,000 

Police and Crime Commissioning        0 

YJB Grant* 350,241     350,241 

Other – TB/SMU/ETE 59,544 36,000   95,544 

TOTAL 857,985 196,000 113,700 1,167,685 
 

    
* Based on 2021/22 grant      

 

 

 

P
age 34



 

13 
 

  Section 4  
 

  Progress and achievements against 2019-2022 Youth Justice Plan  

 

What we have been successful in?  

Reducing First Time Entrants 

First time entrants (FTEs) have reduced in Westminster year on year. Since 

the strategic plan was submitted in 2019, there has been a reduction of 

children and young people aged 10-17 entering the Youth Justice System 

There has been a comparative decrease of FTEs which lies below the 

London and National average. 

Intervening early in a preventative way, to meet the needs of children, 

young people and victims continues to be a key priority across our work. In 

Westminster, community resolutions and triage disposals are undertaken 

by the Early Help Service. This helps to divert those at the lowest level of 

criminal activity ensuring both whole family work and integration into local 

community diversionary activities is a priority. In 2022 the Early Help 

Service introduced the systemic assessment tool that has been piloted by 

the YOT. We will hold workshops and training sessions delivered to Early 

Help Practitioners on principles of understanding desistance, risk of serious 

harm, likelihood or offending and understanding safety and well-being 

within assessments. 

 In addition, the Inclusion Pilot is embedded well within Early Help and 

helps early identification of young people at risk of exclusion and youth 

crime. 

The Youth Offending Team has an established Out Of Court Disposal 

(OOCD) panel that has now been part of two scrutiny panels. Partnership 

working remains  strong across all agencies.  

The Youth Diversion and Liaison (YJLD) role is working well within 

Westminster and provides an opportunity to liaise, divert and signpost 

young people from the earliest opportunity. Screening for speech and 

language is fully embedded at the first appointment for every child and 

young person entering the Youth Justice System. It supports early 

identification and provides more rigorous support for the child or young 

person that is needs lead. 

 

P
age 35



 

14 
 

Reducing Custody Outcomes 

Custody figures in Westminster have been reducing significantly over the 

last 3 years. Since 2020, Westminster Youth Offending Service has seen the 

lowest rate of custodial sentences The comparative annual rate is below 

the London average of 0.21 and slightly over the National average of 0.14. 

The success of such low custodial outcomes for children and young people 

can be contributed to the strong relationship with the Courts which has 

ensured a high level of magistrates confidence in the Pre-Sentence Report  

options provided by practitioners  In addition, the systemic and trauma 

informed approach within practice as well as the established roles of both 

an Educational Psychologist and Speech and Language Therapist has meant 

that the needs of a child or young person as well as structural barriers are 

identified at the earliest opportunity within assessment, thus the focus of 

intervention and work identified takes a pro-social and strength based 

approach.  

The Intensive Supervision and Surveillance Programme (ISSP) is now 

established, we have created a localised service to children and young 

people that draws upon a strong multi-agency approach with key partners 

within the Local Authority. Children, young people, parent/carers are 

central to the planning with the partnership in what support is needed 

from local providers in improving outcomes, opportunities and reducing 

the likelihood of re-offending. This has been a strength within the team as 

it places the child or young person central to the interventions that are 

going to be offered to them. In addition, the scrutiny of any child or young 

person receiving a custodial outcome is overseen by the Specialist 

Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND Board Representative at YCPP, 

which adds an additional lens and scrutiny of practice for this group of 

children and young people.

 

 

Education, training and employment opportunities for 

young people. 

The commitment to address Education Training and Employment (ETE) has 

been addressed at both operational and strategic level. Whist our ETE 

figures have increased slightly, our drive and commitment is to ensure that 

all children and young people open to the YOT are in appropriate 

provisions. We hope to recruit a full-time Education Lead with a 

Resettlement Focus within the next three months. All children and young 

people not in ETE or at risk of exclusion will be referred and every effort 

made to identify and sustain opportunities to get into or remain in ETE will 

be a priority are,  including early identification of those pre 16 children at 

risk of becoming NEET.  In addition, more opportunities for relevant work 

experience placements will be sought with partner agencies within the 

council and work placement providers. We aim to increase the number of 

children and young people offered and being able to sustain training, 

education, or employment opportunities at the end of their order, to 

support them with abstaining from offending in the future.  

We have a dedicated 0.4FTE Employment Coach embedded in the Service 

through Westminster Employment Service (WES)  to support children and 

young people to access opportunities within the Council and through 

providers across Westminster. 

P
age 36



 

15 
 

NRM pilot extension 

The Home Office awarded Westminster City Council (WCC) and Royal 

Borough of Kensington and Chelsea (RBKC)  £50,000 to fund the piloting of 

devolved decision making for child victims of modern slavery. The pilot 

empowers the Local Authority to make the decision about whether a child 

is a victim of modern slavery, in partnership with local safeguarding 

partners.  

We are now three quarters of our way through the pilot and the Home 

Office have granted an extension to this pilot until March 2023. Since May 

2021 there have been 17 referrals received. On average each case has been 

discussed at an NRM Decision Making Panel within 19 days of the referral 

being received.  

What is going well? 

Members of the NRM Decision Making Panel have been praised by the 

Home Officer for their ability to have balanced discussions and to challenge 

one another’s views. 

The NRM Panel continues to value the specialist contributions from the 

Independent Child Trafficking Guardians (ICTG) and the Unaccompanied 

Asylum Seeking Children’s Team who have an in-depth awareness of the 

International picture for trafficked children across the world. 

Reports and referrals received have been of a good standard. 

What are the challenges and next steps? 

How to best balance decisions if the views of the panel members are split. 

First responders have sometimes been unclear about the indicators of 

modern-day slavery. 

Thresholds around criminal exploitation cases has been challenging as 

members of the panel have different views around the extent to which 

some children and young people are choosing to engage in criminal activity 

versus extent they are being groomed or coerced into engaging in criminal 

activity.  

Next Steps 

 Training offer to Local Authority staff and partners. 

 Workshops to reflect on practice challenges in delivery of NRM 

Pilot. 

 Measuring outcomes against the aims and objectives of the pilot 

and to improve practice through partnership working to impact on 

the  outcomes for vulnerable children and young people.  

 

 

Improving understanding of SLCN and Mental Health 

In the last three years we have worked hard to create a health consortium 

team within the YOT which includes Youth Justice Diversion and Liaison 

worker (YJLD), seconded Child Adolescent Mental Health Specialist 

(CAMHS), Speech and Language Specialist, Educational Psychologist and 

Family Therapist. Since the introduction of these services and the 

formation of a health consortium, there has been an increase in identifying 

P
age 37



 

16 
 

children and young people that have undiagnosed need and getting them 

access to the appropriate services for support. The largest impact noted is 

in ensuring support for children and young people that have undiagnosed 

speech, language communication,  those that have missed opportunities 

to be assessed for SEND and have through this forum been able to be 

assessed for (Education, Health and Care Plans) . Getting children and 

young people the appropriate services from CAMHS in relation to young 

people’s mental health or emotional wellbeing. In addition to this the YJLD 

work across custody suite in Westminster is now operating on a shift basis 

over 7 days to  ensure that a wider access to children and young people  

that are in Police custody and are referred to preventative services. 

 

Reducing Serious Youth Violence 

There is a wide spectrum of  multi-agency work ranging from universal to 

targeted specialist offer taking place across the Council together with 

partner agencies, to tackle serious youth violence. The Integrated Gangs 

and Exploitation Unit (IGXU) is central to the Council’s work in reducing 

serious youth violence. The team is a non-statutory unit which identifies 

and works with young people aged 10-25, who are vulnerable or at-risk of 

exploitation or are involved in group violence/ gang-related activity. The 

team consists of staff from across Children's Services, Community Safety, 

Family Services, Metropolitan Police and joint work with Housing, 

Education, Health and Voluntary & Community Sector. Police Officers are 

fully integrated in the IGXU using a variety of enforcement and 

engagement opportunities and allowing for a streamlined approach to 

information sharing and providing a swift response to evolving tensions. 

Within the IGXU there is a Serious Youth Violence Community Engagement 

Officer who builds and maintains effective relationships with local 

communities to give local people  and community members the 

opportunity to raise concerns around serious youth violence, gangs, knife 

crime, and provide information about services and support available within 

the Council. There is also a dedicated Schools and Youth Engagement 

Officer who leads on identifying and developing work with schools, 

colleges, and other education institutions, as well as wider youth provision. 

Overseeing all this work is the Serious Youth Violence Reduction Board that 

ensures we are working together across Council departments, the MPS and 

partner agencies to adapt to the changing nature of violence in 

Westminster. The board looks at how we can better understand the drivers 

behind serious youth violence in the borough, in order to provide 

appropriate and co-ordinated strategic and tactical responses, as well as 

empowering our communities to help reduce serious youth violence. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 38



 

17 
 

Extension to the pilot of Systemic Assessment alternative 

tool to Assetplus assessment 

In September 2018, RBKC alongside  with WCC and Hammersmith and 

Fulham (LBHF)  were selected by the Department for Education (DfE) to 

participate as a pilot alongside North Yorkshire and Lincolnshire. The pilot 

provided us with the opportunity to develop and trial our own assessment 

framework as an alternative to the Youth Justice Board; Asset Plus 

Assessment that is  adopted nationally for all children and young people 

engaged with the Youth Justice System (YJS).  

Building on, and in line, with the wider systemic practice model in 

Kensington and Chelsea, Hammersmith and Westminster, we designed and 

implemented the alternative assessment for identified groups of children 

and young people involved in the youth justice system. The model 

launched, in November 2019, is informed by a systemic and strengths 

based approach and is being used for some out of court disposals (Youth 

Caution and Youth Conditional Cautions) and Referral Orders. We are now 

in our second year of the pilot and have received a clear indication from 

the YJB that they recognise the value of Local Authorities adopting an 

alternative assessment for all disposals with the exception of custodial and 

out of borough transfers which will continue to require Asset Plus. The YJB 

have indicated an independent evaluation of the three alternative 

assessment pilots will be conducted in Autumn 2022 to  inform practice 

going forward. 

The purpose of the pilot is to improve the experiences and outcomes for 

children and young people and families involved with the Youth Offending 

Team by engaging them in identifying and effecting change. The YOT 

systemic assessment adopts a systemic and trauma informed approach 

which assesses the child or young person in context, promoting 

collaboration to facilitate more joined-up and accessible services for 

children and young people and their families. The assessment is being 

measured for its impact on numerous deliverables. 

Risks: The Systemic Assessment is not recognised by Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of Probation  (HMIP) as a credible assessment tool. The YJB 

are engaging with HMIP on this alternative assessment tool. One 

recommendation is  for Asset Plus to only be used for custodial and out of 

borough transfers. However, this will not be implemented until the 

external evaluation is completed in the autumn and after consultation at 

the Systemic Project Board for all three boroughs. In the meantime the 

local systemic  assessment has been updated to include a risk scaling matrix 

and contingency planning,   

Opportunities: Potential to inform a single assessment,  the YOT 

assessment has provided the rational and template for a newly 

implemented systemic tool in Early Help in WCC and RBKC and currently 

being explored in LBHF. Interest is also being shown by other Local 

Authorities. 

Feedback from internal evaluation: 

 It was generally felt by practice managers and supervisors that the 

Alterative Assessment was an “incredibly powerful tool” that 

supported the practitioner to see the wider systems and their 

cultures, beliefs and values that may impact on the child and their 

offending and that this informed more meaningful and effective 

interventions. 

 Overall children and young people felt that the assessment process 

was helpful in setting and attaining goals.  

 On the whole children and young people felt there YOT worker was 

helpful and supportive. 

P
age 39



 

18 
 

 Families felt the assessment and ongoing intervention had brought 

about positive changes. 

 Practitioners benefitted from ongoing support to apply systemic 

practice. 

 

 

Your Choice 

Your Choice is a three year funded (October 2021- April 2024) London 

regional programme to deliver an intensive CBT informed programme of 

intervention to children young people who are deemed medium to high 

risk of involvement in serious youth violence. 

The programme is being evaluated by the Anna Freud Centre and the Fiscal 

Institute of Studies as part of a longitudinal study to measure the impact of 

this intensive goal orientated programme. All 32 London LA’s have 

committed to participate in the programme which is moving at 

considerable pace. 

Your Choice involves the training and supervision of a group of 

practitioners to deliver an intensive goal orientated programme with 

children and young people aged 11-17 (up to 18th birthday) who fall within 

the medium to high risk of serious youth violence either as victims and or 

as a perpetrator 

The programme involves three contacts a week over 12-18 weeks and must 

include two face to face contacts with the child or young person, one 

virtual contact; it can also include family work. One of the face-to-face 

contacts should be an activity that the child or young person has identified 

that will support the changes they want to make. 

Funding is available to support the activities and training that the child or 

young person identifies; we are particularly keen to continue beyond their 

engagement with the programme , funding could include gym and sporting 

club memberships, studio time, or courses. 

We are adopting a team around the child or young person approach 

recognising that a child or young person may have several different 

practitioners working with them who could deliver the different sessions. 

This approach also builds upon our relational approach to working with 

children and young people; anticipating the challenges in engaging a child 

or young person in the programme and the importance different 

relationships have in encouraging participation. 

We are keen to ensure this approach aligns with our systemic practice 

model by ensuring training and supervision is delivered by our clinicians 

who have already trained several practitioners from a range of teams and 

settings.

 

 

 

P
age 40



 

19 
 

Prevention Work 

Early Help 

Westminster continues to develop our Early Help system as laid out in our 

ambitious strategy 2022-25 (sustaining a thriving system). 

This strategy has been co-created with our partners, and as such 

represents a commitment from organisations across our Early Help system 

to work collaboratively to achieve our vision: ensuring that we are able to 

provide the right support, at the right time, to improve the life chances of 

children, young people, and their families in Westminster. In 2019 we set 

ourselves an ambitious strategy, and over the past 3 years we have 

achieved some of these listed below: 

 Family Hubs: Westminster has achieved its ambition of developing 

three Family Hubs. 

 Integrated Early Years Pathway (0-5 transformation): 

Westminster have commissioned an integrated pre-birth to five 

model. The newly formed pre-birth to five pathways will include 

integrated universal delivery to improve the health and wellbeing 

of all children, young people, and parents. 

 Youth Hubs: In 2019, with the re-introduction of funding from 

Westminster City Council into youth services, Young Westminster 

Foundation led the formation of 5 Youth Hubs. These have become 

an integral part of their local Family Hub with the youth manager/ 

leader becoming an active member of the Family Hub Integrated 

Leadership Team (ILT). 

                                                           
1 What is early help? Concepts, policy directions and multi-agency perspectives 
p.6. 

 Youth Violence: Following a successful bid to the Violence 

Reduction Unit, Family Lives launched an innovative Parent 

Navigator Programme; a community-based parent/carer 

champion model. 

 Parental Conflict: Westminster is the lead for a group of seven 

local authorities (LAs) in a programme entitled ‘Building 

Relationships for Stronger Families’ as part of the Department for 

Work and Pension’s (DWP) Reducing Parental Conflict programme. 

 Non-violent resistance (NVR): NVR is becoming well established in 

Westminster, with over 80 practitioners having trained in 

foundation level NVR practice and 9 practitioners becoming 

Advanced NVR practitioners.  

 School inclusion: The School Inclusion pilot is now an integral part 

of the wider Early Help Service and has been expanded to Bi-

Borough.  

 Trauma Informed Practice: Trauma informed training has been 

delivered to over 350 participants from a variety of partner 

organisations by a trauma specialist from the Early Help Service, 

along with an external trainer. 

 

We believe that Early Help means acting ‘early to improve the lives of 

children, young people and families now and in the future.’1 Improved 

outcomes may be a result of preventing problems before they emerge or 

preventing the escalation and/or entrenchment of problems. Our Early 

Help services also promote the necessary conditions for every child’s 

healthy development, reflecting the critical nature of early childhood 

P
age 41

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1053868/Early_help_Research_in_Practice_2022.pdf


 

20 
 

experiences in impacting brain development and therefore a child’s ability 

to fulfil their potential into adulthood.  

Our strategy is underpinned by the ethos of strong ‘whole family and multi-
agency working to support vulnerable families’2 and as such advances the 
national commitment to making a whole system approach to family 
support the established practice in local areas. We view Early Help as a 
‘system’ rather than one service. It is a community of services that 
constitutes a way of working, and we will invest in and develop this system 
to achieve the best for our children and families in Westminster. This 
integrated approach is transforming a family’s experience of accessing 
early support and contributes to the lowering of first-time entrants.  

We have developed four priority areas to focus on over the duration of the 
strategy. 

 Supporting Covid- 19 recovery 

 Youth Engagement 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Economic Wellbeing. 

These have been developed from a review of the data which highlights 
areas of concern, along with dialogue through workshops with our 
partners. These priorities will support the achievement of our proposed 
outcomes and will be delivered through accompanying action plans, which 
in turn will shape the localised operational across each of the family hubs. 

 

 

                                                           
 

Parenting Support 

Westminster parenting offer to families has continued to develop and is 
now delivered both on-line and in person. This has allowed a greater 
number of parents with work or care commitments to attend. The core 
parenting offer comprises evidence-based groups & programmes:  
  

 Non-Violent Resistance - A 12-week group for parents 
with children 11yrs+ who are displaying challenging or risky 
behaviour. 
 Freedom Programme - An 11-week programme for 
women who have experienced domestic abuse in any of its 
forms, providing a reflective space and tools to identify abusive 
behaviour in the future. 
 Triple P - An 8-week positive parenting programme ideally 
suited to parents with children under 11yrs. 
 Building Relationships for Stronger Families Programme - 
(funded by DWP) this programme offered a series of evidence-
based group or 1:1 support for families experiencing conflict 
within their couple or co-parenting relationship. Delivered by 
Tavistock Relationships and local sub-contractors, 
interventions have been offered online or face to face 
according to parent choice. 
 

 

In addition to the group programmes, 1:1 support for parents has 

continued referred by Early Help and Social Care Practitioners. Parents who 

are experiencing barriers which make joining a group more challenging 

such as poor mental health or language barriers, have been provided 1:1 

parenting sessions. Parenting courses continued to be delivered 

throughout the pandemic. This included Non-Violent Resistance (NVR) 

P
age 42



 

21 
 

delivered to 43 parents and carers, helping them develop strategies to 

manage their child’s behaviour. This intervention gives parents/ carers 

alternative strategies for managing their child or young people's 

behaviours whilst avoiding escalation.  

Other specialised parenting groups run across Westminster which have 

been shown to support families experiencing complex issues such as SYV, 

child to parent violence, sexual exploitation & children on the periphery of 

gangs. IGXU colleagues attend the parenting groups to offer advice and 

support. 

Two resource booklets have been produced: 'Advice & Guidance to Parents 

& Carers about SYV, Knife Crime & Gangs' and ‘Talking to your children 

about a violent incident.’  These have been translated into Arabic, Bengali 

(Sylheti), Kurdish and Somali languages and have been circulated in 

workshops, training and group sessions, youth clubs, community centres, 

libraries and GP practices, as well as to teachers, nurses, ward councillors, 

frontline practitioners and Community Champions. 

 

School Inclusion and Trauma-Informed Work  

We have been working on preventing school exclusions through a 

collaborative (inclusive) trauma-informed systemic approach, and as a 

result our exclusion rates are starting to fall. We have been working with 

16 schools so far, with 83 teachers trained and 59 young people on the 

programme. The programme started with the primary sector but now 

includes 8 secondary schools, and to date not one young person on the 

programme has been permanently excluded. An award scheme is being 

finalised for schools who develop the whole school approach and share the 

learning with other schools and some schools have received this award. A 

Bi-Borough Inclusion Strategy has recently been developed engaging key 

stakeholders and our schools across all phases along with Early Help 

Service and services represented in the membership of our Vulnerable 

Children Collaborative, voluntary sector partners and importantly children, 

young people and families to understand the challenges being faced. 

Other early intervention work with schools 

There are a range of other initiatives, which aim to identify need early to 

provide early support. Some examples are: 

• An Early Help Family Practitioner is Linked to each School for 

consultation and advice. This enables reviewing of concerns about 

pupils, sharing information on services available to support the 

needs of children and families including school attendance and 

engagement. 

• School Health Service (school nursing), a local Public Health 
service supports schools, children, young people and their families, 
providing advice and support and signposting on health and 
wellbeing: this includes supporting children and young people at 
alternative provisions as outlined below:  

The local school health service adapted the HHEADSSS assessment 
tool. The assessment delivered by a specialist community public 
health nurse (school nurse) helps gain a holistic view of the child 
or young person’s health and wellbeing needs and provides a 
framework for building a trusted relationship with them. The 
assessment gives many opportunities for health promotion, 
signposting and referrals.  

 

P
age 43



 

22 
 

Outcomes:  

• A comprehensive health review.  

• Identify unmet health, wellbeing and support needs  

• Identify any safeguarding concerns.  

• An opportunity to access a confidential service in which vulnerable 
children and young people can be open and honest.  

• Talking about physical health can be a good place to start building 
a relationship with children and young people. Often children and 
young people will come to the school nurse room to get their 
height and weight measured several times before they feel ready 
to have any wider discussions. 

 

• Family Hub Partnership Panel:  Schools have an opportunity every 

month to share concerns with locality partner services, as part of 

case discussion about families at pre-referral level. West London 

Zone: working in 4 schools, they help children and young people 

build the relationships and skills they need to get on track socially, 

emotionally and academically to thrive in adulthood. Key to the 

work is building trusted relationships, providing specialist support 

and joining up each child’s support system, including families, 

schools and local organisations, to deliver a personalised 2-year 

support plan for 30-40 children. 

• Mental health support teams in schools: Funded by NHSE money 

that flows through the CCGs. The teams deliver evidence-based 

interventions for mild to moderate mental health issues, 

supporting senior mental health lead in schools to introduce or 

develop their whole school approach, giving timely advice to 

school staff and liaising with external specialist services to help 

children and young people to get the right support and stay in 

education. 

• MPS ‘Be Heard’ project will be developed within the Westminster 

Secondary Schools through the Safer Schools Officers. This will give 

young people a voice and support a Youth Independent Advisory 

Group. 

• MPS Safer Schools Partnership (SSP): Westminster has 10 Safer 

School Officers that cover the Secondary Schools signed up to the 

safer School Partnership and now 1 dedicated alternative provision  

officer. There is a regular Dedicated Safeguarding Lead meeting to 

discuss emerging issues and risk. Safer Schools Partnership  (SSP) 

encompasses 14 schools who need regular SSP support. This 

includes KOOTH, a free online counselling service to all local 

children and young people.  

• ‘Fast Forward’ project being developed within Westminster with 

Richmond Rugby Club and Lords Cricket Club which will be offered 

to Primary Schools. This will include a holiday placement scheme. 

Both the local authority and police are involved. 

•  ‘Safe Camp’ which is run by London Sports Association and 

supported by the MPS in Pimlico. Police provide input on safety 

and stop and search. 

 

 

P
age 44



 

23 
 

What have we been partially successful in and what is going to be done to mitigate or overcome any barriers to 

achievement?  

Addressing Substance Misuse amongst children and young people open 

to the YOT 

 

  

Children and young people assessed with AssetPlus or the Systemic 

Assessment during the last two years show that 55% have been assessed 

as having some evidence of substance misuse (chart 1). Chart 2 shows the 

substances recorded. Cannabis is the highest recorded as at least one 

substance, while Tobacco, Alcohol, Ecstasy/MDMA, Inhalants, Cocaine, 

over the counter and Benzodiazepines were also listed. Two of the other 

categories of drugs used involved Lean, a recreational drug made from 

combining opiate-based cough medicine with a soft drink, two other cases 

specified Xanax and Codeine, and the last involved Green ‘UPS’, a synthetic 

drug containing N-ethylpentylone which is significantly stronger than 

MDMA but produces more unwanted effects. 

We work with Public Health and partners such as Insight (local young 

people’s health and well-being service) that specialises in substance misuse 

to prevent and reduce harm caused by substance misuse amongst children 

and young people and  to develop the Bi-Borough Drugs Strategy. In 

addition, we will work with the seconded substance misuse worker in YOT 

to ensure treatment offers are more accessible for young people and work 

is delivered to reduce and abstain from drug use.  

We will work with partners on preventing criminal child exploitation or 

child sexual exploitation through county lines which will include disruption, 

closures to properties used, work with other Local Authorities in the 

Country, issue child abduction notices and support children and young 

people to move away from this lifestyle and improve outcomes for them. 

36, 55%

29, 45% Yes

No

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

eo
p

le

P
age 45



 

24 
 

Reducing Re-offending 

There is a complex cohort of children and young people who are re- 

offending on multiple occasions. Over the next year we will utilise the YJB 

Live Tracker Toolkit and ensure that interventions to support desistance for 

this cohort are in place, and work continues, adopting a relational 

approach with the child or young person and parent or carer. This will be 

one of the focal points to look at within the management team and the 

YCPP. We will continue to collaborate with all relevant Council 

departments to look at opportunities for a particular child and young 

person exploring work and placement opportunities in the Council.  

The Youth Crime Prevention Partnership Board will be scrutinising this 

work holding the YOT to account. We will be introducing a re-offending 

panel with staff and partners to discuss those children or young people that 

continue to offend and measure what difference the interventions are 

making and how they are supporting a pro-social identity. 

 

Lack of seconded Probation officer within the team 

Due to the restructuring of National Probation Service nationwide there is 

currently a shortage of staffing within the teams nationally. At present 

Westminster YOT is without a seconded probation officer.  

To mitigate risk and to ensure a structured, smooth and supported 

transition process that is tailored to meet the individual needs of the young 

person, both services are meeting on a quarterly basis to discuss all young 

people eligible for transfer. There is now a clear protocol in place (refer to 

appendix 5). YOT will be delivering the “transitions to adulthood” work 

with young people eligible for transfer and every young person will receive 

a transition period that is based on need which will include joint 

appointments with their probation officer. Risk assessments will be 

completed by the allocated Probation Officer at the point of transition, 

taking account of the Assetplus assessment. We will also offer increased 

flexibility in our delivery model for transition cases, to ensure their 

vulnerabilities and risks are suitably managed ensuring the right young 

people are transitioned to adult services, at the right time and in the right 

way. A three month post transition review will take place with all  young 

people, and will include  YOT and Probation to review how they are settling 

in to Probation Services and to ensure they are receiving the right level of 

support.  

 

P
age 46



 

25 
 

Addressing disproportionality  

 

In Westminster children and young people from Black, Other and minority 

ethnic backgrounds are overrepresented whilst “White” and “Asian” 

groups are under-represented. In the last year, the over representation for 

the “Other” group has increased, while the “Black” group has reduced and 

the “Mixed-race” group has become slightly under represented. The Other 

group has been the most highly overrepresented group by 17.3% and 

26.6% in the last two years, respectively. The Black group reduced from 

13.3% to 10.0% and the Mixed race reduced from 4.4% to -1.5%. White 

young people on the other hand were underrepresented by -28.8% and -

26.3% in the last two years, respectively. Asian young people were also 

underrepresented but to a lesser extent that the White group by -8.0% and 

-13.1 respectively. National and London benchmarks are provided for 

comparative purposes. 2021-2022 April – December data until the full 

years data is published in May 2022. This data does not include triage and 

diversion cases as the Youth Justice Board only counts substantive 

disposals. These cases are however included on the ethnicity chart for the 

YOT data report that is shared at YCPP and captures all offending 

throughput for the borough rather than only substantive disposals. 

We continue to address this as a partnership and more work is now being 

done with the Metropolitan Police to understand Police stop and search 

data for the borough and arrests verse positive outcomes especially for 

children and young people from Black, Asian or minority ethnic groups.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 47



 

26 
 

Victim and Restorative Justice work 

This area of work remains a key focus for both the Victim and Restorative 

Justice Lead (RJ) as well as the Reparation Lead, this small team had been 

successful in making direct contacts with victims with a specialist approach 

in which victims responded well. The recent change for London YOTs                

(August 2021) that only Police Officers can make initial contact has resulted 

in lower engagement rates. This is an area that the partnership is aware of 

and plans to imminently discuss this at the YCPP board as well seek advice 

from the YJB should be a positive step forward. Prior to the changes in how 

victims were contacted the following was achieved: 

 All victims were contacted for both court orders and those subject 

to OOCD and their views sought as well as Restorative Justice 

options discussed, victim were given choices about their 

involvement. 

 Victim Feedback has been positive in they have conveyed their 

appreciation for the time the YOT has taken to contact them and 

be part of the Restorative Justice process. 

 During COVID-19 pandemic whilst victims were reluctant in 

agreeing their views to be shared, beyond the first call they have 

welcomed the opportunity to discuss the impact of the crime on 

them with the RJ Lead. 

 The RJ team has found there to be an increase in the request for 

restorative approach support from Foster Carers with relationship 

breakdowns with their young person. 

 

Our work in increasing Victim and Restorative Justice support will continue 

to be a focus as well as ensuring victims are protected. Our police officers 

will express the views of victims at internal risk and safety and well-being 

panels. Reparation projects will continue to thrive and expand and we will 

aim to hold more face to face restorative justice meetings as whilst these 

are resource intensive, (and more resource is required such as our plan to 

recruit RJ volunteers), they do yield closure for the victim and an 

understanding from the child or young person of the trauma and stress the 

victim (s) has experienced. We will also embed RJ practices in our day-to-

day work and open up avenues to collaborate more closely with schools 

and safer schools police team, in particular in the areas of reducing 

exclusions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48



 

27 
 

  Section 5  
 

  Performance and Priorities   
 

Performance against National Performance Indicators 

First Time Entrants 

Westminster continues to see a reduction in first time entrants 

(FTEs), the comparative rate of FTEs per 100,000 reduced from 

151 in April 2019 to 69 in December 2021. This rate is lies below 

both the London and National average.  

 

 

 

P
age 49



 

28 
 

Reducing Re-offending 

Westminster data for July 2019 to June 2020 cohort shows the 

percentage of re-offenders reducing on the previous cohort from 

43.8% to 42.4%. Whilst the rate has decreased it remains above both 

the London average of 38.3% and the National average of 33.6% 

both of which have continued to reduce. This is a priority area for 

the Youth Offending Team and partnership to address. 

 

 

 

Westminster data for the cohort of July 2019 to June 2020 shows the 

frequency rate per offender at 2.18 offences. This has reduced from 

2.72 offences per offender for the preceding period. The rate now 

lies below the National average of 3.62 and the London average of 

3.07.  

This is noteworthy as they show a reversal of the binary rate 

positions. London having lower frequency reoffending per 

reoffender that the National average. 

 

P
age 50



 

29 
 

Reducing Custodial Outcomes 

Custodial sentencing occasions in the last 12 months remained at 

zero. The annual rate per 1,000 of youth population remains at 

0.00 below the London average of 0.16 and the National average 

of 0.11. Both benchmarks have continued to reduce gradually. 

The Lord Chief Justice ruling on being in possession of a knife or 

threatening to use one that the courts must impose custody have 

resulted in some children and young people being sentenced to 

custody, but this has not occurred during the last year for 

Westminster.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 51



 

30 
 

Overview of caseload 

Caseload 

Total monthly caseload figures include all children and young people 

subject to YOT intervention programme or assessment for Pre-Sentence 

Report requested by the Courts. Caseload figures do not include young 

people attending Court where no intervention is required. Out-of-Court 

Disposals with a YOT intervention programme are included, but those 

with no YOT intervention are discounted. In Westminster, community 

resolution and  triage cases are managed within Early Help so are not 

shown above, however these are included in the items below to show all 

youth offending within the borough. Caseloads have continued to reduce 

year on. 

 

 

Age and Gender 

Age and gender breakdown for throughput during the last two years. 

Throughput includes all young people in receipt of a substantive disposal 

or where offences are admitted, including triage and community 

resolutions. The number of males increases with age up to 17 years old. 

The number of females is lower and spread more evenly by age. The 

number of females increased last year from 4 to 6, while the number of 

males dropped from 93 to 64. 

 

 

 

47 48
43 43 44 45 46 46

49
46

41 40
3536

32 31 30 28 27 28 29 29 30
34 34

31

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
yo

u
n

g 
p

eo
p

le

WCC 2020-21 WCC 2021-22

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

14 15 16 17 13 14 15 16 17 18

Female Male

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
yo

8
u

n
g 

p
eo

le

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 52



 

31 
 

Ethnicity 

Proportion of major ethnic classification groups for offending throughput 

during the last two financial years. The borough’s 10-17 years’ population 

splits are sourced from the 2011 Census to show comparison with the local 

youth population. The chart shows over-representation for the Other and 

Black groups. White and Asian groups on the other hand are under-

represented, while the Mixed-Race group is in line with the borough. In 

Westminster, Other group accounts predominantly for people of Middle 

Eastern or North African descent. Note these  throughput figures also 

include Triage and Community Resolutions and will differ from the headline 

YOT performance indicator charts which only count substantive disposals 

for Youth Justice Board statistics.  

 

 

Disposals 

Throughput by type of disposal during the last two financial years. The data 

includes all substantive disposals as well as other outcomes where charges 

are proven including Referral Order extensions. Cases deemed suitable for 

triage or community resolution are also included to show the volume of work 

which aims to keep children and young people outside the Youth Justice 

System. Additionally, Criminal Behaviour Orders obtained through the 

Courts, and Statutory Parenting Orders or Compensation Orders given to 

parents or guardians are included. 

 

 

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45%

White

Mixed Race

Asian

Black

Other

Percentage of young offender and local youth population

WCC 2011 Census 10-17 Population WCC 2020-21 Young Offenders

WCC 2021-22 Young Offenders

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y…

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

ar
y…

Yo
u

th
 C

au
ti

o
n

Yo
u

th
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

al
…

A
b

so
lu

te
 D

is
ch

ar
ge

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
al

…

C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
 O

rd
e

r

Fi
n

e

R
ef

er
ra

l O
rd

er

R
ef

er
ra

l O
rd

er
…

Yo
u

th
…

Yo
u

th
…

D
et

en
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
…

C
ri

m
in

al
 B

eh
av

io
u

r…

C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
…

Out-of-Court Court

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
d

is
p

o
sa

ls

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 53



 

32 
 

Offence Categories 

Throughput for the last two financial years by category of offence. All offences 

included as for the disposals chart as well as other non-substantive outcomes. 

Any re-sentenced offences in the period are not counted as these are counted 

at point of first disposal. 

2021-22 - In total there were 141 offences: drugs the most prevalent at 36 

offences (26%), 4 for supply or possession with intent to supply, and 1 

involving Class A drugs. Violence Against The Person also features highly at 33 

offences (23%), of which 12 offences for possession of a knife, blade or 

offensive weapon.  

2020-21 - In total there were 192 offences: drugs the most prevalent at 42 

offences (22%), none of which were supply or class A, followed by Robbery at 

41 offences (21%) , and then Violence Against The Person at 34 offences (18%), 

of   which 21 offences for possession of a knife, blade or offensive weapon. 

Offence Gravity Factor   

The charts show break down for the total offences each year by the gravity 

factor, by number and percentage. The Youth Justice Board defines 'Serious 

Youth Violence' (SYV) as any drug, robbery or violence against the person 

offence that has a gravity score of five or more. Robbery offences all carry a 

gravity score of 6. Gravity scores range from 1 being the least serious to 8 the 

most serious. Gravity 4 offences and above will usually be charged and 

processed through the Courts unless there are mitigating factors in which 

case the offence could be dealt with by an Out-of-Court Disposal. 

 

 

 

2020-21: 2020-21: 

  

Gravit
y 2, 
73, 

38%
Gravit

y 3, 
57, 

30%
Gravit

y 4, 
14, 7%

Gravit
y 5, 4, 

2%

Gravit
y 6, 
43, 

22%

Gravi
ty 7, 

1, 1%

Gravity 
1, 1, 
1%

Gravity 
2, 73, 
52%Gravit

y 3, 
43, 

30%

Gravity 
4, 5, 
4%

Gravity 
5, 3, 
2%

Gravity 
6, 13, 

9%

Gravity 
7, 2, 
1%

Gravity 
8, 1, 
1%

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

B
re

ac
h

 O
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
al

…

B
re

ac
h

 O
f 

St
at

u
to

ry
…

C
ri

m
in

al
 D

am
ag

e

D
o

m
es

ti
c 

B
u

rg
la

ry

D
ru

gs

Fr
au

d
 A

n
d

 F
o

rg
er

y

M
o

to
ri

n
g 

O
ff

en
ce

s

N
o

n
 D

o
m

es
ti

c 
B

u
rg

la
ry

O
th

e
r

P
u

b
lic

 O
rd

er

R
ac

ia
lly

 A
gg

ra
va

te
d

R
o

b
b

er
y

Se
xu

al
 O

ff
e

n
ce

s

Th
ef

t 
an

d
 h

an
d

lin
g

V
eh

ic
le

 T
h

ef
t

V
io

le
n

ce
 A

ga
in

st
 T

h
e…

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
o

ff
en

ce
s

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 54



 

33 
 

Breach of Statutory Order 

Breach of Statutory Order offences dealt with by the Courts during the last 

two financial years. Data is broken down by the type or order breached, 

along with resultant Court outcome.  

2020-21 - In total 11 results for breach of order, including 3 breaches of 

criminal behaviour order. 

2020-21 - In total 4 results for breach of order, including 1 breach of criminal 

behaviour order. 

 

 

 

Pre-Sentence Reports 

Congruence of Pre-Sentence Report proposals and sentencing for the last 

two years is at 100%. 

2021-22 - In total 20 reports due for the Courts that received sentence, 14 

of which were ‘all options’ where report authors are instructed to also 

consider a custodial sentencing option. For all reports the Courts followed 

the proposal of the report author (100% congruence). 

2020-21 - In total 18 reports due for the Courts that received sentence, 14 

of which were ‘all options’ where report authors are instructed to also 

consider a custodial sentencing option. For all reports the Courts followed 

the proposal of the report author (100% congruence). 

 

 

0

1

2

3

B
re

ac
h

 o
f 

a 
re

fe
rr

al
o

rd
er

B
re

ac
h

 o
f 

R
e

p
ar

at
io

n
O

rd
e

r

Fa
ili

n
g 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

w
it

h
 t

h
e…

Fa
ili

n
g 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

w
it

h
 t

h
e…

B
re

ac
h

 a
 c

ri
m

in
al

b
e

h
av

io
u

r 
o

rd
e

r

B
re

ac
h

 o
f 

a 
re

fe
rr

al
o

rd
er

B
re

ac
h

 a
 c

ri
m

in
al

b
e

h
av

io
u

r 
o

rd
e

r

2020-21 2021-22

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
o

ff
en

ce
s Order to Continue

Order Varied

Conditional Discharge

Fine

YRO

Order Revoked

Out of Court 

Disposal

Fine Conditional 

Discharge

Referral 

Order

Referral 

Order 

Extension

Reparation 

Order

Youth 

Rehabilitation 

Order

Youth 

Rehabilitation 

Order - ISS

Detention 

and Training 

Order

Section 90-92 

Detention

Section 226 

Detention

Other 

Sentence

Out of Court Disposal 0

Fine 0

Conditional Discharge 3 3

Referral Order 11 11

Referral Order Extension 0

Reparation Order 0

Youth Rehabilitation Order 19 19

Youth Rehabilitation Order - ISS 5 5

Detention and Training Order 0

Section 90-92 Detention 0

Section 226 Detention 0

Other Sentence 0

Total 38 0 0 3 11 0 0 19 5 0 0 0 0

WCC

Proposal
Total 

Reports

Sentence

P
age 55



 

34 
 

Custody and Remand Location 

The chart counts young people accommodated in each location, broken 

down by year and gender. Custodial accommodation counts one or more bed 

nights in custody in the period. 

2021-22 - In total 5 young males were placed in custody, 2 in Feltham Young 

Offenders Institute, 1 in Oakhill Secure Training Centre, 1 in Vinny Green 

Secure Children’s Home, and one adult male on YRO transition to Probation 

continued to be held on remand at HMP Thameside into the early part of the 

year from the previous year. 

2020-21 - In total 4 young males have spent nights in custody this year, 2 

placed in Oakhill STC, 1 placed in Wetherby YOI, and one adult male on YRO 

due to be transitioned to Probation was remanded to Thameside. 

 
 
Looked After Children 

Looked After Children with a programme at the Youth Offending Team 
during the last two financial years. The data is broken down by legal status, 
measured at the end of each quarter during the year. In cases where the 
young person’s legal status has changed the young person is counted under 
the most recent legal status.  
2021-22 - In total, there were 10 Looked After Children involved with the 

YOT, 9 males and 1 female; 3 young people were accommodated voluntarily 

under Section 20, 4 were on Full Care Orders, 1 young person on an interim 

Care Order and 2 remanded to Youth Detention Accommodation. 

2020-21 - In total, there were 16 Looked After Children involved with the 

YOT, 15 males and 1 female. 8 young people were accommodated 

voluntarily under Section 20, 7 were on Full Care Orders and 1 young person 

was remanded to Youth Detention Accommodation. 

0

1

2

3

ST
C

 -
 O

ak
h

ill
, M

ilt
o

n
K

ey
n

es

YO
I -

 W
et

h
er

b
y,

W
es

t 
Yo

rk
s

H
M

P
 -

 T
h

am
e

si
d

e

SC
H

 -
 V

in
n

y 
G

re
e

n
,

So
u

th
 G

lo
c

ST
C

 -
 O

ak
h

ill
, M

ilt
o

n
K

ey
n

es

YO
I -

 F
e

lt
h

am
,

M
id

d
le

se
x

H
M

P
 -

 T
h

am
e

si
d

e

2020-21 2021-22

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
yo

u
n

g 
p

eo
p

le

Male

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Fu
ll 

C
ar

e
 O

rd
er

Se
ct

io
n

 2
0

R
em

an
d

 -
 Y

o
u

th
D

et
en

ti
o

n
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n

Fu
ll 

C
ar

e
 O

rd
er

In
te

ri
m

 C
ar

e
O

rd
e

r

Se
ct

io
n

 2
0

R
em

an
d

 -
 Y

o
u

th
D

et
en

ti
o

n
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n

2020-21 2021-22

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
yo

u
n

g 
p

eo
p

le

Male

Female

P
age 56



 

35 
 

 

Likelihood of Reoffending 

Likelihood of Reoffending (LoR) is a professional judgement based on the 

Youth Offender Group Reconviction Scale (YOGRS) statistical indicator, as 

well as other factors of the assessment. For the Systemic Assessment this 

is purely a judgement without the YOGRS score. The initial assessment for 

each programme is used for analysis. From the total 90 programmes 

assessed across both years, 20 programmes (22.5%) were rated low, 43 

(47.8%) were rated medium and 27 (30.0%) were rated as high. There were 

no custodial sentence programmes in the last year 2021-22. 

 
 
 

 
Risk of Serious Harm 
 

Risk of Serious Harm (RoSH) is a professional judgement based on the 

AssetPlus or Systemic assessment of the young person including an offence 

analysis of the current offence and any previous offending. The initial 

assessment for each programme is used for analysis. From the total 90 

programmes assessed across both years, 24 programmes (26.7%) were 

rated low, 44 (48.9%) were rated medium, 22 (24.4%) were rated high and 

none (0%) were rate very high. There were no custodial sentence 

programmes in the last year 2021-22. 

 
 
 
 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25
O

u
t-

o
f-

C
o

u
rt

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
u

st
o

d
y

O
u

t-
o

f-
C

o
u

rt

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

2020-21 2021-22

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

ro
gr

am
m

es

High

Medium

Low

0

5

10

15

20

25

O
u

t-
o

f-
C

o
u

rt

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
u

st
o

d
y

O
u

t-
o

f-
C

o
u

rt

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

2020-21 2021-22

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

ro
gr

am
m

es

High

Medium

Low

P
age 57



 

36 
 

Safety and Wellbeing 
 

Safety and Wellbeing is a professional judgement based on the complete 
AssetPlus or Systemic assessment of the child or young person. The initial 
assessment for each programme is used for analysis. From the total 90 
programmes assessed across both years, 15 programmes (16.7%) were 
rated low, 48 (53.3%) were rated medium, and 26 (28.8%) were rated high 
and 1 (1.1%) was rated very high. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Emotional Development and Mental Health 
 

Children or young people assessed with AssetPlus or the Systemic 

Assessment during 2020/21 and 2020/22. Chart 1 shows 

number/percentage for young people having contact with Child and 

Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS); of 65 individual young 

people assessed, 25 (39%) had some form of contact with CAMHS. Chart 

2 shows the number/percentage of children and young people with 

response to question ‘Any formal diagnosed Mental Health condition’. 

From the total 65 young people, 6 (9%) had a formal diagnosed Mental 

Health condition. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

1. Contact with Mental Health Services 2. Mental Health formal diagnosis 

25, 39%

38, 58%

2, 3%

Yes

No

Yet to clarify

6, 9%

59, 
91%

Yes

No

0

5

10

15

20

25

O
u

t-
o

f-
C

o
u

rt

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
u

st
o

d
y

O
u

t-
o

f-
C

o
u

rt

Fi
rs

t 
Ti

er

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

2020-21 2021-22

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

ro
gr

am
m

es

Very high

High

Medium

Low

P
age 58



 

37 
 

Substance Misuse 

Children and young people assessed with AssetPlus or the Systemic 
Assessment during the last two years. Chart 1 shows answers to the 
leading question – Is there any evidence of substance misuse? Of the 
total 65 young people assessed, 36 (55%) revealed some evidence 
of substance misuse. Chart 2 shows the substances recorded.  
 
All but one case had Cannabis recorded as at least one substance, 
while Tobacco, Alcohol, Ecstasy/MDMA, Inhalants, Cocaine, Over 
The Counter and Benzodiazepines were also listed. Two of the Other 
category (please specify) drugs listed involved Lean, a recreational 
drug made from combining opiate based cough medicine with a soft 
drink, two other cases specified Xanax and Codeine, and the last 
involved Green ‘UPS,’ a synthetic drug. 
. 

 
 
Speech, Language, Communication and Neuro-disability and Special Educational Needs. 
 

Children and young people assessed with AssetPlus or the Systemic 
Assessment during the last two years. Chart 1 shows the ‘Speech, 
Language, Communication and Neuro-disability’ indicator, derived 
from a series of questions in AssetPlus and a leading question in the 
Systemic Assessment. Of 65 children and young people assessed, 32 
(49%) were recorded with some concerns over their Speech, 
Language, Communication or Neuro-disability. It should be noted with 
AssetPlus some of the questions alone do not necessarily point to a 
SLCN condition and such behaviour can be typical of young 
adolescents. Chart 2 shows responses to the question ‘Have any 
Special Educational Needs or Disabilities been identified?’. Of the 65 
young people assessed, 23 (35%) had an identified SEND. 

  
1. Evidence of substance misuse 2. Substances recorded 

  
1. SLCN Indicator 2. SEND 

36, 55%

29, 45% Yes

No
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

C
an

n
ab

is

O
th

e
r 

-…

To
b

ac
co

Ec
st

as
y/

M
D

M
A

A
lc

o
h

o
l

O
ve

r 
Th

e…

In
h

al
an

ts
/V

o
l…

C
o

ca
in

e

B
en

zo
d

ia
ze

p
i…

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

eo
p

le

32, 49%

30, 46%

3, 5%

Yes

No

Yet to clarify

23, 
35%

39, 
60%

3, 5%

Yes

No

Yet to
clarify

P
age 59



 

38 
 

Responding to over-representation  

 

Unlike our neighbouring boroughs, our highest over represented group of 

children and young people are from the other ethnic category. This group 

consists of young people who are Algerian, Egyptian, Moroccan, Syrian, 

Kurdish and Azerbaijani. Our next over represented category are children 

and young people that are black and then mixed race. What is of interest 

and concern is the under representation of white children and young 

people know to the YOT. 

We have identified that our statistics warrant a closer look especially in 

relation to data held by the Metropolitan Police and number of stop and 

searches including no further actions for this group of children and young 

people. This is being addressed at the Partnership Board to ascertain why 

certain groups of children and young people from particular ethnic groups 

are being stopped and searched more frequently by the police compared 

to young white people. In addition, we want to get a better understanding 

of arrests versus positive outcomes (charge and conviction) to scrutinise 

this data further. 

We have also noted that in Westminster those children and young people 

that receive out of court disposals and those that continue to offend are 

from Black, Asian and other minority ethnic backgrounds.  

 

 

 

 

Our approach over the next three years is to address and reduce this 

disparity by doing the following: 

 Scrutiny of experiences of children and young people subject to 

multiple police stop and searches and no further action. 

 Addressing provision of Out of Court Disposal outcomes and 

challenging partners around reduced opportunities for those 

children and young people that give, ‘no comment’ interviews and 

are expediated through the Youth Justice System. 

 Yearly OOCD Scrutiny panel with partners to address decision 

rationales and ensure that the panel are being consistent and 

appropriate when considering interventions for children and 

young people. 

 Remand scrutiny panel to be heled yearly with partners. 

 Reduce risk of school exclusions which disproportionately impact 

children and young people from Black, Asian and  other ethnic r 

categories.  

 Restorative justice approaches locally to have considerations to 

disproportionality.  

 Increase opportunities within the YOT for volunteers from Black, 

Asian, and other ethnic  groups and voluntary organisations to be 

sought that are working effectively within the borough with such 

groups. 

 Developing and scrutinising local practice in relation to 

disproportionality with partners and commitment to drive forward 

the action plan.  

P
age 60



 

39 
 

Our Priorities  

We are committed as a Youth Offending Team and Partnership within Westminster, on improving the lives of children and young people at risk of or having 

entered the Youth Justice System. Our focus on the next three years will be:  

 

Priority 1 Reduce re-offending 

 

 

 

 

 

We will  

 Create of a quarterly re-offending panel with partners to gain 

better understanding of factors against desistance and measuring 

impact of interventions being offered.  

 Lead on deep dives with board members on spikes in data to better 

understand need and problem solve and support change. 

 Focus on whole family approach with Family Therapist with a 

prevention lens on younger siblings and joint agency working on 

such cases. 

 Gain better understanding and review of disproportionality for this 

cohort.  

 Put a greater emphasis on creating sustained change through the 

delivery of work by the YOT. 

 Explore peer support interventions and introduce these into the 

work delivered by the YOT to reduce re-offending. 

 Work closely with and scrutinise overlap of cases open to YOT and 

IGXU, social care including Child Protection, Children in Need and 

Looked After and Leaving Care children and young people to 

ensure more is being done to offer alternative choices to children 

and young people. 

 

 

P
age 61



 

40 
 

 

 

Priority 2 Improving ETE outcomes for young people 

We will 

 Have a dedicated full-time post within the YOT of an Education, 

Training and Employment (ETE) Lead to overcome barriers and 

improve opportunities for children and young people to gain and 

sustain ETE and address those children and young people at risk of 

becoming NEET. 

 Every young person 16 + will meet with ETE worker and have a CV 

completed as part of intervention. 

 Children and young people out of education will have to access to 

functional Maths and English as part of YOT intervention.  

 Offer workshops to children and young people to start their own 

business and money management workshops. 

 Every child or young person will receive a bespoke education and 

learning plan. 

 Speech and Language screening will be done on point of arrival to 

the YOT to ensure that all interventions offered take into 

consideration the child or young person’s speech, language and 

communication needs and that strategies offered are being 

implemented.  

 Work closely with Westminster Employment Service and hold 

quarterly meetings to review all children and young people’s 

pathway choices.  

 Ensure the profile of children and young people with special 

educational needs is recognised by all professionals. 

 Develop links with local businesses and corporate companies to 

ensure creative opportunities are offered to children and young 

people open to the YOT. 

 Ensure where a child or young person has undiagnosed need they 

receive the support from the Educational Psychologist to be 

assessed for EHCP and SEN.  

 Offer bespoke support for children and young people in alternative 

provisions including mentoring and transition to contribute to 

supporting children back into mainstream education or onto 

further education, training or employment. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 62



 

41 
 

 

Priority 3  Reducing substance misuse amongst young people 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We will 

 Work closely with partners to develop the bi-borough drugs 

strategy  and support driving the recommendations including 

healthy schools partnership and addressing it in RHSE curriculum 

in schools. 

 A local Public Health approach to preventing and reducing the 

impact and harm of illegal drugs on children, young people and 

families is being developed. This will include how we best support; 

children and young people who are using illegal drugs, parental 

substance misuse and ‘hidden harm’ of children and young people 

that are involved with dealing drugs. The plan will outline the 

complexities and the challenges, what the evidence base and local 

intelligence tells us, the current local picture and key provision We 

will address as a   partnership on how best to tackle these complex 

issues. 

 Deep dive audit on those children and young people assessed with 

having substance misuse and ensuring interventions being 

delivered are making a difference. 

 Work closely with Substance Misuse worker seconded to YOT to 

understand current drug misuse of young people and gain a better 

understanding on the increase of drug related arrests and 

convictions. 

 Work closely with parent/carers to support change. 

 

 

P
age 63



 

42 
 

Priority 4 Improving outcomes for young people with Speech Language 

Communication Needs   

 

We will 

 Ensure that every child or young person is screened for SLCN as 

part of their first appointment so that this informs the assessment, 

engagement and interventions offered. 

 SLCN strategies are embedded by professionals working with a 

child or young person and supervision is offered by the Speech and 

Language Therapist to case managers on a bi-monthly basis to 

review how strategies offered are being embedded and measuring 

if this is making a difference. 

 Training to be provided to the YOT, Police and partners on 

understanding SLCN and how best to engage with children and 

young people. 

 Review data relating to SLCN and measure impact on a quarterly 

basis. 

Priority 5 Improving outcomes for young people with mental health 

needs 

We will 

 Develop data reporting on children and young people assessed and 

those receiving intervention to ensure that appropriate support is 

being offered to children and young people.  

 Continue to consult on complex cases with Forensic CAMHS and 

ensure recommendations are followed. 

 Increase team, partners, parent and carers and communities 

understanding of diagnoses and interventions offered and offer 

parent inclusive interventions.  

 Scrutinise data of police arrests and ensure that children and 

young people have access within custody to the Youth Justice 

Liaison and Diversion worker at point of arrest  or after, that needs 

are assessed and children and young people are diverted to 

appropriate support services. 

 Create a bespoke health room within the YOT for children and 

young people. 

 Offer consultations for children at risk of school exclusion to 

schools and support their understanding of the child or young 

person’s needs.  

P
age 64



 

43 
 

 

Priority 6 Reducing  Serious Youth Violence 

 

 

 

 

 

We will 

 As a partnership develop a greater analytical understanding of 

serious youth violence, the fear of violence and the problems the 

Local Authority and partners are seeking to address, to enable us 

to identify appropriate tactical and strategic responses, including 

the ongoing development of a Serious Youth Violence Dashboard 

and Integrated Gangs and Exploitation Dashboard.  

 Have specialist gang detectives to deal with gang related serious 

crime offences and intelligence lead weapon sweeps. 

 Have a focus on safeguarding children and young people with a 

preventative lens working closely with education providers. This 

will include monitoring exclusions and have an exclusion steering 

group focus on those schools with the highest exclusion rate which 

is being addressed as part of the Inclusion Strategy action plan. 

 Deliver early help work with younger siblings of gang members and 

work with parent and carers.  

 Deliver on the Church Street violence reduction transitions pilot 

aimed at year 5&6 pupils, their parent or carers and teachers in the 

Church Street Priority 7 Prevention and diversion.

P
age 65



 

44 
 

Priority 7 Work with communities and neighbourhoods. 

 

 

 

We will 

 Offer group work or one to one support to parents open to the YOT 

or Early Help Service through DWP parental conflict work. Ensuring 

that parenting programmes include serious youth violence as part 

of the intervention. 

 Deliver the Community Capacity Building project in North 

Westminster estates (Mozart, Warwick, Brindley and Amberley), 

including development of North Westminster Community Network 

and youth-led steering groups on the estates. 

 Facilitate community involvement in stop and search including 

monitoring of S60 by community representatives.  

 Involve young people with local violence prevention work through 

youth council, youth independent advisory groups and media 

platforms. 

 Do a community road show including local secondary schools with 

focus on prevention and information sharing. 

 

Priority 8 Prevention and Diversion 

We will 

 Engage with children and young people on the cusp of or engaging 

in anti-social behaviour and or substance misuse. We aim to 

prevent escalation into serious youth violence or offending 

through supporting pathways to more positive outcomes including 

your choice initiative. 

 Continue to focus on school attendance and building on the 

success of the school inclusion pilot. We will explore opportunities  

 

 

for partnership working including developing team around the 

school model. 

 Ensure we are aligned to Prevent agenda. 

 Focus on whole family model in relation to mental health and well-

being supporting parents with their emotional resilience, 

improving family relationships and developing targeted response 

to domestic abuse. 

 

P
age 66



 

45 
 

Priority 9 Victim and Restorative Justice  

 

We will 

 Develop a Restorative Justice Policy. 

 Work with  local safeguarding partners and Police  to ensure all 

children and young victims of violence and those vulnerable to 

exploitation are referred to appropriate packages of support 

across both statutory and voluntary provision. 

 Victims of violence have a trauma informed needs assessment with 

referral to CAMHS when the assessment determines that to be 

appropriate.  

 Improve support to family members of victims.  

 Increase engagement through recruitment of RJ specialists. 

 Ensure that victim’s voice is represented at our Risk, Safety and 

Well-Being Panel by the YOT Police Officers in the team. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 67



 

46 
 

 

Priority 10 Constructive resettlement  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We will 

 Embed beyond youth custody framework within our constructive 

resettlement framework. 

 Ensure that resettlement work starts from the point a child or 

young person enters custody and work is done to help develop a 

pro-social identity ensuring all  principles of constructive 

resettlement are adhered to. 

 Work with parent and carers jointly and ensure there is a holistic 

response on supporting the child or young person once released to 

the community. 

 Ensure that children and  young people has appropriate access to 

education, training or employment at point of release to support a 

pro-social identity. 

 Continue to discuss cases  on a quarterly basis with the YCPP Board 

led to mitigate any potential risk issues or to support a multi-

agency response and escalation to services where needed. 

 Where a child or young person has SLCN or special educational 

needs this information is passed to the custodial setting and the 

child or young person is able to access the appropriate support. 

 

 

  

 

Health – Mental and 

Physical  

Education, Training and 
Employment  

 

Drugs and 
Alcohol 

 
Attitudes, Thinking and 
Behaviours  

 

Families and 
Communities  

 

Finance, Benefits 
and Debt  

Accommodation  

 

On a scale of 1-10 how are you doing with 

each area? 

1–2 “We don’t know what to do about 

this, things are as bad as they could be”   

3–4 “We understand we need to make a 
lot of changes and want some help in this 
area” 
5 -6 “We are trying to improve things but 
finding it very hard” 
7 -8 “Things are definitely improving but 

Friendships and peers  

 

Constructive activities  

 
Goals and aspirations 

 

P
age 68



 

47 
 

  Section 6  
 

  National Standards  
 

The Youth Offending Team took part in the national self-assessment of National Standards in 2020. In 2021, Westminster YOT was chosen for a validation 

visit by the Youth Justice Board. The Youth Justice Board visited Westminster YOT in February 2021 to validate National Standard 4. And National Standard 

5. A presentation was delivered by the Head of Service (HOS) and Service Manager and cases randomly in this selection inspected. Feedback received is 

summarised below: 

 Management board process and how the audits were undertaken was robust. 

 National Standard 4 Secure, agreed with our self-assessment findings of Good. Case file audits felt we were a little harsh on our judgement of 
good  as there was so much evidence on casefile and through assessment of understanding the child or young person.  

 Escalation of safeguarding was thorough and robust. 

 Areas identified as improvement as part of the self-assessment was being implemented and pleased with progress. 

 Impressed with case managers relationship with staff in Feltham YOI  and the communication between YOT and YOI. 

 Recording on Careworks (case management system)  was  good. Standardised template that has been implemented by the YOT   is easy to follow 
and measures impact. 

 Satisfied that we  demonstrated the need to expand transition to a broader scale. 

 Agreed with our self-assessment judgement across both domains  
 

P
age 69



 

48 
 

 

P
age 70



 

49 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 71



 

50 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72



 

51 
 

The YOT will focus on the following in the upcoming year which will be 

part of the Service improvement plan: 

 Timeliness of quality assurance of systemic and assetplus 

assessments. 

 Contingency planning embedded within systemic and assetplus 

assessments. 

 Likelihood of offending, risk and safety and well-being 

judgements to be robust within systemic assessments. 

 Change of circumstances followed up in a timely manner with a 

review assessment.  

 Victim safety considerations within all assessments, panels 

including risk and safety and well-being to be a focal point of 

discussion.  

 

 

 

PRACTICE WEEK 

In addition to this the YOT are part of the wider Bi-Borough Practice Week 

observations of direct casework and file reads on a bi-monthly basis. There 

is continuous oversight on practice within the team and supporting  

 

ongoing drive to ensure work is of a good standard and has principles of 

systemic and trauma informed embedded within each case. Feedback on 

these are received by the case manager and YOT Service Manager to 

ensure areas of good practice are highlighted and recommendations 

followed up through supervision.

 

AUDITS 

Direct case file and audit of cases are undertaken by the YOT management 

team on a routinely basis. To ensure that practice remains within 

framework of National Standards and that cases are managed 

appropriately through lens of risk management and public protection as 

well as safety and well-being. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 73



 

52 
 

  Section 7  

 

  Key risks and challenges for service  

RISK MITIGATION 

  

Getting children and young people into sustainable ETE provisions and 
improving outcomes and life experiences for young people. 

Introduction of a full time Education and Resettlement Lead role within the 
team and the Employment Coach employed through Westminster Education 
Service (WES) should support reductions in children and young people at risk 
of school exclusion. Work to address poor school attendance and 
engagement for our vulnerable cohort  of children and young people and 
provide creative opportunities to get into and sustain education and training 
opportunities will be embedded through this role and wider partnerships 
and workstreams. 

Embedding systemic principles and trauma informed practice  within the 
team and maintaining staff morale to drive this forward. 

The Family Therapist role has been embedded in the Youth Offending Service 
since July 2020 and is supporting the team with understanding systemic 
principles and applying  trauma informed lens within the pilot systemic 
assessment and assetplus. New staff within the team  will be attending  the 
next systemic training. Ongoing effective practice forums take place on a bi-
monthly basis to support front line work. 
 

Increase in re-offending rates 
 
 

There is a small cohort currently open to the YOT that continue to re-offend 
and this is likely to impact on re-offending rates. To mitigate this, board 
members are actively involved to address this and will undertake deep dive 
audits on themes emerging to identify any learning and ensuring all is being 
done to address this. The YOT management team regularly review the YJB 

P
age 74



 

53 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

re-offending live toolkit to establish which interventions are being delivered 
to children and young people open to the service. We will be introducing a 
re-offending quarterly panel with partners to measure how effective 
interventions offered are in making a difference and improving desistance. 

Consultation on new Key Performance Indictors (KPIs) to be introduced  in 
October 2022 

The YJB and MoJ have recently announced new KPIs that will be introduced 
in late Autumn 2022. This is a positive move and will provide YOTs and 
Partnership Boards with more oversight on key indicators. As with any new 
change, there are  areas to address such as; who will be accountable in 
certain indictors and what measures or data will be used to validate this. The 
YOT and Partnership  Board will continue to remain vigilant to any 
developments and opportunities to feed into the National picture. 

P
age 75



 

54 
 

  Section 8                                                                                          
 

  Service Improvement Plan  
 

Over the next year the Youth Offending Team and Partner agencies are committed to drive service improvement. This work will be overseen by the YCPP 

who will  measure progress against key themes will have which are listed below. 

YOT IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2022-2023                                                                                  
Theme 1:  Reduce Re-offending 
Overall outcomes: 

 To improve outcomes for children and young people  

 Strengthen partnership  work in addressing SYV in the borough 

 To build and maintain effective relationships with local communities, including voluntary organisations, parents, schools, businesses and 
community groups to give local people the opportunity to influence our work 

 To incorporate voice of the child ,  into discussions and decision making 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

Introduction of re-offending panel to 
discuss children and young people that are 
continuously re-offending with partners to 
measure impact of interventions offered 
and to bring additional resources to 
promote desistance.  

Kiran Hayer 
YOT 

Improve outcomes 
for children and 
young people  
 

  

Mapping work to be conducted where 
children and young people are open jointly 
across services to avoid duplication and to 
track outcomes. 

Kembra Healy and IGXU Improvement in 
services offered to 
young people with 
desired outcome. 
 

  

P
age 76



 

55 
 

Whole family work to be prioritised with 
those children and young people within this 
cohort to understand and support wider 
family work. 
 
 
 

Tony Charles Family 
Therapist YOT and EH 

Prevention of 
escalation of 
offending and to 
offer support to 
young siblings that 
may be at risk  
 

  

Theme 2: Addressing and tackling disproportionality 
Overall outcomes: 

 Improve outcomes for children and young people from Black, Asian, Other or Mixed Race heritage. 

 Improve relationships between children and young people with the Police and to address multiple stop and search and no further action data 

 To reduce school exclusions which disproportionately impact children and young people from Black, Asian or other categories 

 To ensure that children and young people receive appropriate outcomes, support and interventions 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

To develop, scrutinise local practice, 
provision with partners, and drive forward 
action plan. 

YOT and Partners Measurable data to inform impact 
and reduction 

  

To work with MET police on stop and search, 
no further action and released under 
investigation data to this cohort of children 
and young people. 

Police, Partners  Reduction in data relevant to this 
cohort, more evidence of positive 
outcomes following stop and search 
and reduction in period of time 
children and young people released 
under investigation  

  

Develop greater understanding of needs of 
girls within the Youth Justice Service and 
those children and young people that are at 
risk of or are open to Looked After Children 
or Leaving Care Service (LAC/LCS) . 
 

YOT/ LAC/LA To ensure services and support is 
appropriately identified and 
intervention to prevent escalation  

  

P
age 77



 

56 
 

Theme 3: Improve ETE outcomes for children and young people 
Overall outcomes: 

 To increase opportunities for children and young people around education, training or employment 

 To support children and young people at risk of or excluded from mainstream provisions 

 To gain a better understanding of missed diagnosis in particular to SEND and SLCN                                                                                                  

 To improve communication and information sharing between schools and partners 

 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress 

Support the transition from primary to 
secondary school.  
 
Delivery of the Church Street violence 
reduction pilot aimed at year 6 pupils, their 
parents and teachers to 4 primary schools in 
the Church Street area of Westminster.
Produce evaluation at the end of 22-23 and 
consider how learning can be shared. 

Young 
Westminster 
Foundation / 
Future Men/ EH 

Improvements in health and 
wellbeing and resilience of young 
people on the Church Street 
transitions pilot 

 

Minimise school exclusions: Monitor school 
exclusions data at YCPP, in particular which 
schools have higher level of exclusions or 
where exclusions disproportionally impact 
young people from Black, Asian and Other 
ethnic categories and which provide more in 
house support prior to exclusion.  
 
Deep dive to be conducted into those on 
fixed term exclusion and where we could 
intervene as a system. 

Education Hilary 
Shaw 

Reduce the risk factors that lead to 
exclusion 

 

Scrutinise data in relation to OOCD 
outcomes, sentencing outcomes and 
remand or custodial outcomes. 

YOT/Court/CPS/ 
Police 

Children and young people have 
received appropriate outcomes and 
decisions are consistent and 
appropriate  

  

P
age 78



 

57 
 

Early identification of children and young 
people that have unidentified need in 
particular to SEND and SLCN and ensure 
services and provisions are appropriately 
sought for this cohort 

YOT – Educational 
Psychologist/ 
Speech and 
Language Therapist 
and SEN 
department – Kay 
Stammers 

Appropriate support is sought   

Additional emphasis given to those young 
people attending Alternative Provisions or 
are NEET to maximise opportunities for them 
including access to functional skills in Maths 
and English and dedicated support around 
accessing or remaining in ETE 

Education Lead 
YOT/ Hilary Shaw 

Increase attainment and 
opportunities for young people. 

 

Theme 4:  Reduce Substance Misuse and  preventative education and awareness raising 
Overall outcomes: 

 To reduce and prevent substance misuse in children and young people  

 To provide early intervention and education to children and parent/carers 

 To gain a better understanding of context for local children and young people 

 To reduce risk or involvement in County Lines and SYV 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

Develop Bi-Borough drugs strategy to 
address issue of drug use amongst children 
and young people. 

Public Health Reduction in drug use measure through 
data  

  

Develop and roll out a consistent offer of 
training to schools and youth provisions and 
communities on impact of drug use. 

IGXU/YOT/Schools To prevent children and young people 
engaging in drug use. To provide 
education and understanding to 
parent/carers and wider community 
and schools heath service. 

  

Analysis of young people open to the YOT 
that are assessed as having substance 
misuse issues, to identify, intervene and 

YOT/Insight/YCPP To reduce substance misuse amongst 
children and young people open to the 
YOT 

  

P
age 79



 

58 
 

measure impact through reduction or 
abstinence. 

Theme 5: Improve outcomes for children and young people with SEND/SLCN or Mental Health Needs  
Overall outcomes: 

 To improve children and young people’s health and wellbeing. 

 To identify and intervene appropriately to get support, advice and access to services for vulnerable children and young people 

 To improve outcomes for children and young people with identified need 

 To increase awareness for parent/carers and local community 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

Implement screening for speech and 
language and mental health as part of first 
appointment to the YOT and to ensure these 
inform the assessment, engagement and 
intervention offered.  

Health team and 
YOT 

Ensure access to appropriate provision and 
services  

  

One page profile created on every young 
person assessed as having SLCN or SEN 
needs to share with partners to best support 
child or young person. 

Health Team Partners including Police have a better 
understanding and how best to engage with 
child or young person  

  

Work with Local Authority, Schools and SEN 
department to ensure access to services and 
support is given to this cohort 

YOT, EH, SEN, 
CAMHS, Police, 
Education 

Better outcomes for young people with 
SEND/SLCN or Mental Health need 
 

  

Increase partners, parent/carers and 
communities understanding of diagnosis and 
how best to support children and young 
people. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YOT, EH and IGXU Greater understanding and reduction of stigmas 
attached 

  

P
age 80



 

59 
 

Theme 6: Reduce serious youth violence and exploitation 
Overall outcomes: 

 To reduce young people’s involvement in gangs and serious youth violence  

 To reduce young people’s exploitation 

 To improve young people’s health and wellbeing. 
 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

Explore future funding and partnership 
opportunities to develop the partnership 
response to serious youth violence. 

Community 
Safety 
Commissioners  

Funding to commission services/roles/projects 
to reduce young people’s involvement in SYV 
and improve their wellbeing 

  

Deliver early help work with younger siblings 
of gang members and work with parent and 
carers. 

IGXU/EH Prevent children at risk of becoming involved in 
offending and serious youth violence 

  

Undertake an annual review of the IGXU 
to understand the impact, outcomes and 
effectiveness in reducing serious youth 
violence. 

Community 
Safety 
Commissioners / 
IGXU / Analysts 

Understand the impact of the IGXU and the 
impact of the interventions on offending, gang 
affiliation and the young people’s lives  

  

Work closely with NRM pilot and to identify, 
intervene and provide support to those 
children and young people that are 
vulnerable. 

Safeguarding/YOT 
and partners  

To reduce children and young people at risk of 
exploitation  

  

Theme 7: Prevention and engaging communities  
Overall outcomes: 

 To reduce children and young people at risk of becoming involved in anti-social behaviour or offending  

 Reduce school exclusions 

 To improve engagement with local communities and faith groups 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

To ensure all young people at risk of or on 
the edge of offending are flagged through 
MASH and referred to appropriate services 
to support pathways to more positive 
outcomes. 

MASH/ EH/ 
YJLD  

Reduce first time entrants  
Improve outcomes for children and 
young people 

  

P
age 81



 

60 
 

Offer parent support, parental conflict 
work including developing toolkit on gangs 
and serious youth violence. 

YOT/ EH and 
IGXU 

Demonstrable multi-agency response 
to tackling serious youth violence and 
increase parental support  

  

Focus on school attendance and school 
inclusion pilot. 

EH/Schools Understand the impact of the 
interventions on sustaining school 
placements 

  

Increase work with local communities and 
faith groups to gain better understanding 
of concerns and needs and ensure 
appropriate access to support and advice is 
given. 

EH/IGXU/ LA 
and YOT 

Better relationships with local 
communities and better information 
sharing and advice as well as 
signposting for support.  

  

Theme 8: Increase victim uptake in Restorative Justice process and increase child or young person’s understanding of 
harm caused 
Overall outcomes: 

 Improve support to victims of crime and their families 

 To increase children and young people’s understand of harm caused and to prevent further offending 

 To increase communities feeling safe 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

To develop a restorative justice strategy. YOT Measurable data to understand 
increase in RJ within practice of YOT 

  

To ensure all young victims of crime and 
those vulnerable to exploitation are 
referred to appropriate packages of 
support across both voluntary and 
statutory provision. 

Police, 
Safeguarding 
and LA 

Reduction in offences committed   

Increase engagement through Restorative 
Justice specialists.  
 

YOT Data to monitor increase in uptake of 
RJ measures  

  

To work on a solution with the partnership 
board to ensure that initial victim contact is 
swift and is carried out by RJ specialists. 

YOT/YCPP Increased victim take-up   

P
age 82



 

61 
 

To ensure that YOT police officers’ 
attendance at the risk and safety and well-
being panels also express the voice and 
views of the victims. 

YOS Police 
Officers 

Victims views are heard and Victim 
Safety is addressed  

  

Theme 9: Improving practice within YOT and learning from inspections and thematic inspections 
Overall outcomes: 

 To ensure that the YOT team are aware of  HMIP Inspections/ thematic, key findings are shared and discussed with a clear actions to show 
learning has taken place across practice with changes to policy and protocols where required. 

Action Lead Outcomes Progress RAG 

Ensure all specialist staff ( Health; Police; 
Education etc),  are able to access recent 
reports and they discuss key areas of good 
practice and share key learning at team to 
team meetings. 

YOT 
Operational 
management 

Learning is shared as well as good 
practice, and practice is improved as a 
result. 

  

Ensure that thematic reports are read and 
discussed at team meetings or part of 
Effective Practice. Current focus will be on 
May 2022 reports onwards:  The impact of 

the Covid-19 pandemic on the criminal 
justice system – a progress report (PDF, 
304 kB).  
. published 

YOT Learning from Thematic’s are 
embedded across the team 

  

To ensure that the HMIP Annual reports 
have been distributed electronically to all 
staff. 
 

YOT Good practice nationally and any areas 
for development are scrutinised – 
areas such as risk and contingency 
planning continue to be a focus. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 83

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/cjji/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/05/CJ-Covid-19-recovery-progress-report-web-2022.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/cjji/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/05/CJ-Covid-19-recovery-progress-report-web-2022.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/cjji/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/05/CJ-Covid-19-recovery-progress-report-web-2022.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/cjji/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/05/CJ-Covid-19-recovery-progress-report-web-2022.pdf


 

62 
 

 

  Section 9  
 

  Evidence based practice and innovation  
 

Within this plan what is  discussed and supports innovation and evidence based practice include: 

Systemic Assessment 

YJB Systemic assessment one in 3 Local Authorities Nationally with DfE and YJB approval to pilot alternative assessment to assetplus. Our vision and ambition, 

to be  recognised through external evaluation this is a credible tool to assess children and young people and adopts the principles of child first offender second 

through the careful design, trial and pilot of the assessment. 

NRM Pilot 

NRM pilot one in 10 Local Authorities across the country to be given approval. Ambition, to identify, intervene and  support children and young people at risk 

of exploitation. To increase knowledge and awareness within partnership and local communities to ensure that safeguarding is a priority of every individual 

living in this borough. 

Trauma informed practice  

Individual trauma informed practice in casework – the YOT team whether it be case managers, volunteers, managers, or our specialist view their practice via 

a trauma informed lens . This is evident in our various practice forums as well as health consultations which bring in the expertise of internal and external 

CAMHS specialists. One example of both innovative and emerging practice has been in the case of A, which is detailed below: 

 A is approaching 18, has a diagnosis from CAMHS he has suffered numerous ACES, has witnessed domestic abuse and struggles with being able to 
have victim empathy for the crimes he has committed.  He has been prescribed psychotic medication in which the case manager, and the CAMHS 
specialist as well as Mum work together to ensure it is administered in order to both treat A as well as protect potential victims. 

P
age 84



 

63 
 

 The small and careful steps that the case manager and his co-worker (with CAMHS support) has resulted in sensitive practice and approaches in 
which the young person is valued and respected. Ensuring he has taken his medication daily via mum, knowing when its best to approach A with 
conversation post medication, introducing a traffic light system as part of contact to ensure we know what mood A is in and how best to approach 
the session. However, he is also held to account when and if he misses an appointment. Our enforcement approach has been consistent but 
addressed via a trauma informed approach and through systemic letters being written by the Service Manager to A to address his behaviour and 
engagement. 

 This case is discussed at Health Forums, and at the Risk and Safety and Well-Being  panels – where health approaches are discussed in details and 
the F-CAMHS specialist support is one that is exceptional and ensures that the YOT is led by health in taking a holistic approach whilst keeping all 
parties safe. 

 
Impact so far? Whilst A continues to come to Police notification, he has started to engage with his YOT Worker in a meaningful way  and the trusted 
relationship that is being built is evident. A strength based approach to this work has been key. His worker has focused on helping A think about his skills and 
aspirations and has started to support the young person to work towards his goals within Business. Sessions have been tailored based on his needs including 
venue they are held, times they are held and duration. A was unable at the beginning to address the  impact of the offence on the victim and has found it 
hard in life to take responsibility for his actions or apologise. Through the sensitive work delivered by his YOT worker, A, send a WhatsApp message to his 
worker one evening, having reflected on their session earlier that day and sent a draft of an apology he wrote to his victim. This is a big achievement for A 
and demonstrates how trauma informed intervention has supported engagement with this young person and helping him understand impact on others. He 
attends his session knowing that his YOT worker has spoken to mum around when she has  administered his medication, (he needs 2 hours from administration 
to being able to engage in a session) and the use of traffic light system at the beginning of the session as well as mood management through emojis has 
allowed this young person to be able express himself and not feel judged. 

  

Our approach to addressing unmet need  

Our approaches to ensure any unmet needs in regard to SCLN  and mental health has been achieved by the screening of all children and young people who 

arrive at the YOT. To ensure they get the right support and access to services is a priority, this whilst a positive step, has uncovered unmet needs that have 

not been addressed. We are dedicated to address this as a partnership and work with preventative services and schools to ensure this can be prevented. Our 

dedicated Health Team  is currently developing practice with all case managers to ensure that individual SCLN supervision is provided to case managers on 

their caseload so that the strategies that have been recommended have been followed through. 

 

 

P
age 85



 

64 
 

Meaningful reparation projects 

During Covid-19, whilst the Country was experiencing various stages of lockdown, this did not deter the YOT to create meaningful reparation projects in light 

of usual providers and provisions being closed. Numerous projects were created that children and young people were able to engage in and share their 

experiences of the following: 

1. Experience of lock down and impact on them, their families and communities. 

2. Views on increase of police stop and searches on children and young people in the borough. 

3. Interviewing parents/grandparents who moved to the UK to improve their lives and those of their families and getting an understanding of their 

experiences, journeys, and barriers. 

Children and young people created podcasts that were shared with local residents took part in poetry to express their thoughts and had their work showcased 

at a local theatre. 

4. Making cards for the elderly during Christmas Period (in particular one  young female that was diagnosed with  autism struggled being in a social 

setting). She gained so much from this project that was done with her on a one to one basis with the Volunteer and Community Specialist. The biggest 

impact was helping her develop her social skills and overcome social anxiety. She is now linked in to a local Youth Club where she is thriving. 

Next Steps: More bespoke reparation projects are being developed based on individual needs of children and young people including a gardening project and 

community event project. Work continues to be delivered on maintaining and building relationships with our volunteer sector in the Local Authority and 

community providers. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



 

65 
 

  Section 10  
 

  Looking forward  
 

We are aiming within the next 12 months to improve lives of children and young people open to the Youth Offending Team by: 

1. Reducing re-offending and supporting children and young people build a pro-social identity and access appropriate support and services. 

2. Improving outcomes for children and young people that are overrepresented within the criminal justice system. 

3. Ensuring that every child and young person has an offer of and or is engaging and sustaining meaningful ETE provisions. 

4. Address emerging theme of offences relating to drugs possession or usage being reduced. 

5. Improve outcomes for children and young people with SLCN, SEND or mental health needs. 

6. Work with partners and Local Authority to reduce incidences of serious youth violence and have a proactive approach to prevent, intervene, and de-

escalate. 

7. Have local community support to address and support change for children and young people living in our borough. 

8. Have community assurance on how victims of crime are being supported. 

9. Drive changes and practice within the Youth Offending Team, through the Systemic Assessment external evaluation and introduction of new key 

performance indicators in Autumn 2022. To continue with embedding learning from audits and practice week within casework and to ensure feedback 

from children, young people, parent and carers continues to shape and improve the service.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 87



 

66 
 

  Section 11  
 

  Sign off and submission  
 

In September 2019, Westminster had a full inspection of children’s social services, which graded services ‘outstanding’ in all three categories. We are very 

proud that hard work and continued drive to be ambitious for our children was recognised by Ofsted as “Outstanding” and that inspectors noted that the 

“quality of work is exceptionally high, strongly focused on improving children’s circumstances and highly empowering and enabling for parents and carers”. 

(Ofsted 2019). 

In March 2020 we had our Joint Local Area SEND Inspection, which recognised the improvement journey across our local partnership and acknowledged our 

shared ambition for our children and young people with SEND. Inspectors noted the strength in our local offer, suggesting that we ought to be bolder in our 

communications about just how good it is. 

There were a small number of recommendations made in the SEND inspection which correlated with our self-assessment and plans are underway to drive 

further improvement. We are at the early stages of updating our SEND Strategy to take us to 2024. Over the course of the next few months we will be 

engaging with a wide group of stakeholders to shape ambitious priorities for the 2021-2024 strategy.  

Our inspections so far ILACS, SEND and the most recent focussed visit (June 2022) around extra familial harm for which we are awaiting the final report have 

all  noted our joined up systems that we have in place to identify need early thereby working much earlier with families to prevent cases escalating into the 

YOT arena. 

We have a relational approach in our work and have very good partnerships with key agencies to ensure risk and contextual safeguarding are paid attention 

to across children’s services.  

Sarah Newman 

Executive Director of Children’s Services and Chair of the Youth Crime Prevention Partnership  Section 12  

 

P
age 88



 

67 
 

  Appendices   
 

Appendix 1 My Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                         

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Young Person:  Date of Birth:  Age:  

My order starts on:  My order ends on:  My order last for:  

Risk of harm:  Risk of re-offending:  Safety & Well-Being concerns:  
 

Scaled approach(circle): Low                      Medium                   High  YOT Case Manager  

Offence(s) and date(s):  
 

Type of Order:  Will I turn 18 during 
the order? 

 

Person(s) ordered/invited 
to attend Planning 
meeting: 

 

VICTIM and Other Issues (how does this Agreement consider the views/needs of the victim and work towards repairing the harm) Also indicate 
if a Victim was present or a Victim Statement was presented at this meeting: -   
 
 
Victim Safety considerations: -  

                 ’s Initial Plan  
This plan includes important information that has been talked about and agreed at my meeting. Westminster Youth Offending Team 

P
age 89



 

68 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Things that I am good at… 

 

 

 

Things that are working well at the moment… 

 

 

My 

Plan 
 

Things that I think led to me getting into 

trouble… 

 

 

 

Things that we are worried about… 

 

 

I think these things need to 

happen next… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I think these people have been 

affected by what happened… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 90



 

69 
 

These are all of the things that I agree to do while I am working with the 

YOT: 

 I will not reoffend  

 I will go to all of my YOT appointments and I will be on time (I 

am only allowed to be 15 minutes late). 

 I will go to the YOT __ times a week for _ weeks 

 I will tell the YOT if I change my phone number, address, or if I 

want to go on holiday 

 I agree to do __  hours of reparation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

             

              

 

  

 

 

 

    

  

 

 

 

 

   

Reparation means doing something to repair 
the harm to the victim or community. These 
are the types of reparation activities I would 
like to do… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How will I 

achieve this?… 
How will I know 

this is going 

well? … 

How my 

parents/carers 

can help me … 

What I agree to 

work on in the 

next____ months 

P
age 91



 

 70 

 

 

I understand that if I do not do all of the things I have agreed to, I might have to go back to court. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We are signing our names below to show that we agree with this plan: 

My Name: ………………………………………………………………………                     YOT worker: ………………………………….…… 

Parent/Carer:  ………………………………………………………………..                     YOT Manager ………………………………….… 

Panel Member 1(If applicable): ………………………………………                    Anyone else   ……………………………………… 

Panel Member 2(If applicable): ……………………………………..                     Date of plan: ……….……………………………..  

Date to review of my progress:………………………………………    

 

P
age 92



 

 71 

APPENDIX 2 -FEEDBACK FROM CHILDREN/YOUNG PEOPLE 

 

 

 

  

Chris, my employment worker at the 

YOT helped me  get  employment 

with a Westminster council service 

workstream, after this ended  I was 

supported with getting my  CSCS card 

and now I am waiting to start an 

electrician apprenticeship. I never 

thought any of this was possible  

I did my  reparation 

hours at North 

Paddington Youth club  

because I like helping 

others. I got on with the 

manager really well and 

he was so impressed 

with my work that he is 

now helping me get my  

driving licence. The YOT 

really supported me to 

find a placement that I 

would enjoy 

 

My YOT worker  helped me navigate 

the EU settlement scheme which 

stopped me from being able to work. I 

have with his support been  given the 

right to work and leave to remain, 

without his support I wouldn’t have 

got this done and now I can get a job 

 

 Things have been really hard for me at 

home. Jack  supported me, my mum 

and my brothers. He applied for a 

charity grant  for me and my brother to 

get a place of together, the grant 

application was successful and we  are 

currently searching for somewhere to 

live. The tensions at home have got 

easier and we are all getting on better  

because of his support 

What do you find most helpful 

about your YOT Worker? 

Parent Feedback 

Only good things to say about 

Nadine, she  has been very 

helpful. She gives good advice to 

both my son and to my family. 

Nadine is very informative and 

caring and compassionate. She 

shows a lot of sympathy.  

She has been focussing 

specifically about what my son 

wants for the future and this has 

helped him make changes  

Feedback from Parent: 

“From the beginning of 

coming to YOT to now, 

his confidence has 

boosted a lot” 

 

The work with  

Angela  on  my 

friendships and 

who I surround 

myself with helped 

me understand 

how this can 

impact my choices 

Feedback from 

parent.. ”I am so 

grateful and thank 

everyone, particularly 

YOT and Children 

Services for all the 

support you have 

given my son” 

 

P
age 93



 

 72 

APPENDIX 3 GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 94



 

 73 

APPENDIX 4 TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR YCPP 

 

Westminster Youth Crime Prevention Partnership (YCPP) April 2022. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

Introduction 

Section 39 (1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the co-operation of the named statutory partners to form a Youth Offending Team (YOT). Section 38 (1, 2) identifies 

the statutory partners and places upon them a duty to co-operate in order to secure youth justice services appropriate to their area. These statutory partners are: 

 The local authority 

 Police 

 The probation service 

 Health 
 

To support this co-operation additional partners have been recruited to the Westminster YCPP as outlined below. 

Purpose 

The Youth Crime Prevention Partnership will fulfil the statutory functions of a Youth Offending Team Management Board as laid out by the Youth Justice Board and will: 

 Provide strategic direction to prevent offending by children and young people and provide on-going challenge to the delivery of local youth justice services; 

 Focus on maximising outcomes for children and young people who are: 

o At risk of offending; 

o Victims of offending; 

o Entering the youth justice system.   

 

The roles and responsibilities will be to; 

 Determine how the YOT/youth justice services are provided and funded; 

 Oversee the development and implementation of Westminster’s youth justice plan; 

 Discuss emerging trends, themes and risks relating to youth crime, anti-social behaviour and violence and consider and oversee a partnership response. 

P
age 95



 

 74 

 Monitor the performance of the Youth Offending Team including against key performance indicators (KPIs)   

Governance & Accountability 

The Youth Crime Prevention Partnership will be accountable to the Executive Board and ultimately the Safer Westminster Partnership, see attached at appendix 1. 

The group will report into the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board via the Chair, the Director of Children’s Services.   

Working Arrangements 

Meetings will take place every 8 weeks.   

The meeting will be divided into 2 parts - standard agenda items focusing on statutory performance data for the YOT and the second part a thematic focus with additional 

invitees as necessary.   

Meetings of the YCPP will not be open to the public.  Meeting papers are not confidential unless otherwise stated.  Meeting papers not deemed confidential may be made 

available beyond the Group’s membership. 

Membership 

Core Members 

   

Organisation Name Title Specific role on Board Deputy 

     

Westminster City Council Sarah Newman 
(Chair) 

Bi-Borough Executive Director of 
Children’s Services 

Chair of Board to oversee all functions 
and to hold partners and agencies to 
account 

Nicky Crouch 

Westminster City Council Nicky Crouch Director of Family Services Deputise chair of board and oversee 
all functions 

Julie Rooke 

Westminster City Council Alice Kavanagh Community Safety Commissioning 
Manager 

To act as local champion within 
community safety and to ensure that 
the different governance streams 
related to crime and disorder are 
joined up 

Adam Taylor 

Westminster City Council Julie Rooke Head of Access and Assessment, 
MASH and IGXU 

To ensure that young people are 
identified early and that process 
across cases are joined up, to ensure 

Matthew Watson 

P
age 96



 

 75 

safeguarding young people across 
both teams is a priority.  

Westminster City Council Madhu Chauhan Head of Early Help and YOT To provide oversight of early 
identification and prevention of 
children and young people  entering 
the youth justice system 

Bridie Collin 

Westminster City Council
   

Kiran Hayer YOS Service Manager YOT is accountable to the Board for 
KPIs as set by the YJB and in providing 
an overview of YOT performance and 
delivery. Reporting on progress 
against the Youth Justice Plan and 
keeping the Board up to date with key 
challenges and developments and 
changes within the CJS 

Philippa Benge 

Westminster City Council Matthew Watson Service Manager, Integrated Gangs 
Exploitation  Unit 

To ensure that key messages in 
relation to serious youth violence are 
integrated into the management of 
the YOT and information is shared 
effectively. To ensure that cases 
across both service compliment and 
not duplication provisions for children 
and young people.  

Marie-Teresa Brown 

Westminster City Council Marie-Teresa Brown Deputy Service Manager, 
Integrated Gangs and Exploitation 
Unit 

To deputise and provide oversight on 
key responsibilities of IGXU 

** 

Westminster City Council Hilary Shaw Bi-Borough Senior Advisor School 
Inclusion 

To act as the school lead across 
mainstream and alternative 
provisions and support and challenge 
NEET and school exclusion  

** 

Westminster City Council 
Member representatives 

Cllr Tim Roca 
Cllr Aicha Less 

Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young people. 
Cabinet member for Community 
Protection 

To represent Cabinet members at 
YCPP. Have strategic oversight of the 
standards for children in the Youth 
Justice system and be satisfied that 
appropriate systems and policies are 
in place to achieve positive outcomes 
for children. 

** 

P
age 97



 

 76 

Westminster Employment 
Service 

Eileen Gallagher Head of Westminster Employment 
Service 

To provide employment coach within 
YOT and to ensure that provisions and 
services around education, training 
and employment are identified and 
offered to children and young people 

Sola Okusaga 

Education SEN Kay Stammers  Principal Manager To act as the local champion for youth 
justice within Education and to have a 
lead responsibility for SEN on the 
Board 

Steve Comber 

Metropolitan Police James Johnson 
 
Rory Wilkinson 
 

Chief Inspector  
 
DCI 
 

To work with the LA in relation to 
securing youth justice services 
appropriate to policing, aimed at 
preventing offending by children and 
young people. To provide advice, 
challenge and support towards the 
strategic developments of YOT and to 
address disproportionality   

Chris Sadler  

London Probation Rekha Brigue Head of Service To act as the Probation lead, 
overseeing statutory responsibilities 
including secondee probation officer 
within YOT. To feed in new 
developments and opportunities. To 
lead and be accountable for the 
effective transition of young people 
to adult services 

Sarah Colt/Martin Hessic 

Westminster City Council, 
Public Health 

Debbie Arrigon Deputy Director, Public Health 
Senior Public Health Strategist 

To act as Public Health Champions for 
Youth Justice and  

Liz Brutas 

CCG Henry Leek Head of Commissioning NHS-NWL 
CCG 

To act as the representative for the 
community health services provided 
by NHS and CCG and advise in relation 
to the provision of these services to 
children and young people in the 
youth justice system 

Angela Caulder 

P
age 98



 

 77 

CAMHS Ogechi Anochie CAMHS Team Manager, CNWL To oversee secondee within YOT and 
to oversee all CAMHs related services 
within YOT ensuring they are 
evidence based and meet the local 
need profile  

Chris Ugochukwu 

Housing Janet Durrant Community Safety Manager To act as the champion for Council’s 
housing management service in 
relation to anti-social behaviour and 
housing issues for YOT. 

** 

CPS Toks Adesuyan CPS London South Area Youth Lead To provide critical lens and support to 
the Board on sentencing outcomes 
for children and young people and 
challenges presented at the Board 

** 

Youth Justice Board Dominic Daley ** Joint Head of London Region The YJB is responsible for monitoring 
the effectiveness of the youth justice 
system at a national and local level, 
and provides information on 
individual YOTs to HM Inspectorate of 
Probation, which in term informs 
inspection priorities. As a Local 
Partnership Advisor, to provide a 
‘critical friend’ relationship to the YOT 
and the Board 

** 

Court Rep Caroline Johnston JP 

 

Chair, North and Central London 
Youth Panel 

To provide oversight of all youth court 
matters within the Board. 

Thalia Lambri 

Westminster City Council Phil Barron CEO Young Westminster 
Foundation 

To ensure voice of children and young 
people is present and captured with 
the Board and to keep board abreast 
with developments across service 

** 

** New replacement to be confirmed and included

P
age 99



 

 78 

APPENDIX 5 – PROTOCOL FOR TRANSTION TO NATIONAL PROBATION SERVICE 

 

Providing a structured, smooth and supported transition process, tailored to meet the individual needs of the young person. Ensuring the right young people 

are transitioned to adult services, at the right time and in the right way. 

 

 

1 week prior to Transition 
Meeting: 

YOT provide data of all 17.5 
year olds

YOT Lead identifies cases 
suitable for transition and holds 

discussion with Case Worker

Transition meeting: 

All 17.5 year olds discussed and 
decision on transition made. 
Diversity and safeguarding 

needs of all cases considered

Within 10 days of meeting: 

YOT Case Worker sends 
required paperwork to named 

Probation Service administrator

Probation Service Administrator 
adds case to Delius.  Case is 

allocated by Senior Probation 
Officer

Within 10 days of information 
being received:

Allocated Probation Practitioner 
initiates contact with YOT 

worker

Young person turns 17 years 
and 9 months: 

YOT Case Manager co-ordinates 
multi-agency transition 

meeting. Attended by Probation 
Practitioner

Young Person turns 18: 

Final transfer meeting held, 
attended by YOT Case Worker, 

Probation Practitioner and 
Young Person 

3 months Post Transition: 

Post transition review meeting 
held attended by Probation 

Practitioner, Young Person and 
YOT Case Worker

WESTMINSTER, HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM, ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA YOUTH TO ADULT TRANSITION FRAMEWORK 2022 

P
age 100



 

Children and Adults, Public 
Health and Voluntary 
Sector Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

Date:      22nd August 2022 

 

Report of:     Councillor Tim Roca   

 

Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Young People and Learning 

 

Report Topic: Out of School Provision in Westminster City 
Council 

 

Report Author:  Iraklis Kolokotronis, Bi-Borough Principal Early 
Years Service Lead 

 

Contact Details:                  iraklis.kolokotronis@rbkc.gov.uk 

 
 

1. Summary 
 
Out of school provision was one of the sectors that was affected by the pandemic. Many 
families stopped using breakfast and after school clubs and holiday clubs’ numbers 
declined quite significantly, which led to the closure of some clubs.  
 
However, in recent months with parents and carers returning to workplaces, numbers have 
started to increase again. A small number of schools report low numbers and concerns 
regarding long term sustainability.  
 
Out of school providers and schools report that the patterns of attendance have changed 
and many families only access three sessions per week as opposed to five days, which 
used to be the case before the pandemic. This makes sustainability a challenge. 
  
Breakfast and after school clubs are primarily organised by the schools and delivered by 
school staff or by external providers that are non-Ofsted registered as sessions usually last 
less than 2 hours.  
 
Based on the information we have received from schools, there are currently 1551 places 
for breakfast clubs and 2124 places for after school provision across Westminster schools. 
 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 7



2. Current Issues 

 

This year has been particularly challenging as staff shortages have had an impact on out of 
school hours provision. Some providers are reporting that breakfast clubs are quieter than 
before the pandemic, as mentioned above. It is not always easy for families to find suitable 
provision, especially for children under the age of five. Families report that it is not always 
easy to find relevant information and prices vary quite significantly.  

 

3. Cost Ranges 

 

The types of provision available varies substantially, between and within schools. For after-
school provision, most schools can only specify a range of costs that may apply. Some 
schools also deliver a reduced or no cost offer to children eligible for Free School Meals 
(FSM), or discounts for siblings. The range of costs across schools is illustrated below based 
on cost per session, estimated from termly or weekly prices where necessary. 

 

Provision Phase Minimum 
Cost 
anywhere 

Maximum 
Cost 
anywhere 

Average 
Minimum to 
Average 
Maximum 
Cost 

Average 
Mid 
Cost 

Number of 
Schools 
responding 

Breakfast 
Club 

Primary £0 £6.85  £3.34 18 

 Secondary £0 £1  £0.50 2 

After 
School 

Primary £0 £15 £5.95–£9.84 £7.89 20 

 Secondary (Insufficient data) 

 

4. Next Steps 
 

The Early Education and Childcare Service will continue to work with out of school providers, 
send out regular newsletters and offer support, advice and guidance and facilitate forums, as 
required. We will continue to have conversations with schools and out of school providers to 
introduce more affordable, flexible and high quality out of school provision for Westminster 
families. 

 

We will work closely with schools to explore the possibility of introducing multi-school hubs 
for schools that are considering discontinuing the out of school offer for their families. This 
will ensure that geographical areas will have wraparound care hubs where local families will 
be able to access services.  

 

Moving forward, information about breakfast and after school clubs will be added to the 
individual school records on the Westminster Family Information Service (FIS) website to 
support parents to identify and compare the offer.  

 

The Council will work with schools in Westminster to register for ‘Magic Breakfast’ which 
subsidises breakfast clubs. ‘Magic Breakfast’ is a government funded initiative and breakfast 

Page 102



club places are free to attend for all children in schools accessing the scheme. To access the 
scheme schools need to have at least 35% of pupils recorded as eligible for Pupil Premium. 
Currently, 56% of our schools are eligible and eight of them are already accessing the offer. 
We have identified the schools that have not signed up yet and will encourage them to register 
so that we make breakfast clubs available to all children. It is worth mentioning that all pupils 
of participating schools will be able to access the offer for free, as mentioned above.  

 

Primary Offer 

 

Breakfast and after school clubs are delivered in almost all primary schools in Westminster. 

 

Secondary Offer 

 

Many secondary schools offer after school activity clubs. However, it has been difficult to 
determine associated costs and collate specific information due to gaps in the information 
shared by schools. We are aware that the secondary after school offer is also supplemented 
by youth and library provision. 

 

Library Offer  

 

Libraries run a variety of sessions that are free for all families/children (see attached 
information). The offer consists of a variety of sessions (for example, homework clubs, Lego 
clubs, story time sessions, craft activities, Saturday clubs, coding clubs, chess clubs, rhyme 
time etc.). This is a popular offer and the sessions are well attended. The voluntary and 
community sectors offer services that families access too.  

 

Youth Offer 

 

There is an after-school youth offer in place, which is well attended.  

 

An interactive map has been introduced to demonstrate where out of school provision 
currently takes place in Westminster, a snapshot of which is included below.   

 

This provision is in addition to a wider leisure and sports offer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



Figure 1: Map of known provision for out of school hours: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



Figure 2: Map of state schools with Key Stages 1 to 3, for comparison. Size of bubble 
represents number of pupils in Key Stages 1,2, or 3 in January 2021. 
 

 
 
Link to interactive map: 
 
https://app.powerbi.com/links/prsrJOOhmM?ctid=50d8c115-b77f-4395-a3ba-
3b407caf0d88&pbi_source=linkShare 

 

Page 105

https://app.powerbi.com/links/prsrJOOhmM?ctid=50d8c115-b77f-4395-a3ba-3b407caf0d88&pbi_source=linkShare
https://app.powerbi.com/links/prsrJOOhmM?ctid=50d8c115-b77f-4395-a3ba-3b407caf0d88&pbi_source=linkShare


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

Children, Adults, Public 
Health and Voluntary 
Sector Policy & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

Date: 
 

12 September 2022 

Classification: 
 

General Release  
 

Title: 
 

2022/2023 Work Programme  

Report of: 
 

Head of Governance and Councillor Liaison 
 

Cabinet Member Portfolios: 
 

Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Cabinet Member for Young People, Learning and 
Leisure 
 

Wards Involved: 
 

All  
 

Policy Context: 
 

All 

Report Author and  
Contact Details: 
 

Artemis Kassi 
akassi@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. Executive Summary 

1. This report requests the committee members to consider the work programme 
for the 2022/2023 municipal year.  

2. Meeting dates for the 2022/2023 year 

2.1 The Committee is advised that the scheduled meeting dates for the 2022/2023 
year are: 

 20 October 2022;  

 5 December 2022; 

 28 February 2023; and 

 17 April 2023. 
 

3. Suggested topics 

3.1 The Committee is reminded that a scrutiny task group to investigate the 
emotional wellbeing and mental health of young people in Westminster was 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8

mailto:akassi@westminster.gov.uk


established under the leadership of Councillor Karen Scarborough, with 
membership drawn from Policy and Scrutiny Committees in previous municipal 
years. These were the Business and Children’s Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
and the Adults and Public Health Policy and Scrutiny Committee. It is suggested 
that the work of this task group be updated and finalised. 

 
3.2 The Committee’s agenda for the meeting on 12 September includes a review of 

the Annual Youth Justice Plan. The Committee is asked to discuss and suggest 
potential topics for remainder of the year. 

 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect any of the 
background papers, please contact Artemis Kassi. 

akassi@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 
 
Appendix 1: Terms of Reference 
Appendix 2: Work Programme 
Appendix 3: Action Tracker 

Page 108

mailto:akassi@westminster.gov.uk


CHILDREN & ADULTS, PUBLIC HEALTH & VOLUNTARY SECTOR POLICY AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

COMPOSITION 

Seven (7) Members of the Council (4 Majority Party Members and three (3) Opposition Party 

Members). 

Four (4) co-opted Members with voting rights i.e. one co-opted representative each from the Church 

of England and Roman Catholic Diocesan Education Boards and two Parent Governor 

Representatives.  

Two (2) co-opted Members without voting rights, i.e. two Headteachers of Westminster maintained 

schools. 

NB: The voting rights of the co-opted members only extend to matters relating to Education. 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

(a) To carry out the Policy and Scrutiny functions, as set out in Chapter 4 of the Constitution in 

respect of matters relating to all those duties within the terms of reference of the Cabinet Member 

for Cabinet Member for Young People, Learning and Leisure and the Cabinet Member for Adult 

Social Care, Public Health and Voluntary Sector. 

(b) To carry out the Policy and Scrutiny function in respect of matters within the remit of the 

Council’s non-executive Committees and Sub-Committees, which are within the broad remit of the 

Committee, in accordance with paragraphs 18.2 and 18.3 as well as section 19 of Chapter 4 of the 

Constitution. 

(c) Matters within the broad remit of the Cabinet Members referred to in (a) above which are the 

responsibility of external agencies and in particular to scrutinise matters relating to the provision of 

Health Services within Westminster, including the consideration of any reports referred by the local 

Health Watch. 

(d) To scrutinise the duties of the Lead Members which fall within the remit of the Committee or as 

otherwise allocated by the Westminster Scrutiny Commission. 

(e) To scrutinise any Bi-borough proposals which impact on service areas that fall within the 

Committee’s terms of reference. 

(f) Any other matter allocated by the Westminster Scrutiny Commission. 

(g) To have the power to establish ad hoc or Standing Sub-Committees as Task Groups to carry out 

the scrutiny of functions within these terms of reference. 

(h) To oversee any issues relating to Performance within the Committee’s terms of reference. 

(i) To have the power to scrutinise those partner organisations that are relevant to the remit of the 

Committee. 

(j) To consider any Councillor Calls for Action referred by a Ward Member to the Committee. 

 

Page 109



(k) To discharge the Council’s statutory responsibilities under Section 7 and 11 of the Health and 

Social Care Act 2001 with regard to any planned substantial developments and variations to NHS 

services. 

(l) To oversee strategic and accountability issues within local health commissioners and providers. 

Page 110



APPENDIX 2 – Children, Adults, Public Health and Voluntary Sector Policy and Scrutiny Committee 

Work Programme 

 

ROUND 1 
12 July 2022 

Agenda item Purpose Responsible Cabinet Member 
and Executive Director/senior 

officer 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change 

Work programme To consider and agree the 
outline work programme for 
the committee for the year 
ahead, with input from 
Cabinet Members, Executive 
Directors and other officers on 
how to make best use of the 
Committee’s time and where 
the Committee will have the 
biggest impact 

n/a – report of Head of 
Governance and Councillor 
Liaison, drafted in conjunction 
with relevant senior officers 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



ROUND 2 
12 September 

Agenda item Purpose Responsible Cabinet Member 
and Executive Director 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change 

Annual Youth Justice Plan To review the annual youth 
Justice plan which Local 
Authorities have a legal duty 
to produce. The plan should 
shows how they will provide 
and fund youth justice services 
(YJSs) in their area. 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 

Breakfast and after school club 
provision in Westminster 
schools  
 

To review the provision of 
breakfast and after school 
clubs in Westminster schools. 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 

Work programme To review the work 
programme in light of events 
and recent discussions 

n/a – report of Head of 
Governance and Councillor 
Liaison, drafted in conjunction 
with relevant senior officers 
 

 

 

 

Page 110



ROUND 3 
20 October 

Agenda item Purpose Responsible Cabinet Member 
and Executive Director 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities. This 
should include a briefing on 
the Music Hub.  

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change 

Westminster Adult Education 
Service – strategic plan review 

To consider the proposed 
strategic plan for WAES and to 
provide input on the future 
direction of WAES 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 

Out of school provision  To consider work undertaken 
to increase out of school 
provision (after school and 
breakfast clubs/holiday 
support) by the new 
administration and identify 
areas where there may be 
more to do 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 

Work programme To review the work 
programme in light of events 
and recent discussions 

n/a – report of Head of 
Governance and Councillor 
Liaison, drafted in conjunction 
with relevant senior officers 
 

 

 

Page 111



ROUND 4 
05 December 

Agenda item Purpose Responsible Cabinet Member 
and Executive Director 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change 

Annual Safeguarding Adults 
report 

To consider the annual 
Safeguarding Adults report 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and the Voluntary 
Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care 

Local Safeguarding Children 
Partnership annual report 

To consider the annual 
Safeguarding Children report 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 

Work programme To review the work 
programme in light of events 
and recent discussions 

n/a – report of Head of 
Governance and Councillor 
Liaison, drafted in conjunction 
with relevant senior officers 
 

 

Budget Task Group gap – January/February 

Page 112



ROUND 5 
28 February 2023 

Agenda item Purpose Responsible Cabinet Member 
and Executive Director 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care  

Westminster Reveals 
2023/summer cultural 
outreach 

To review plans for the 
summer of cultural outreach, 
anchored by Westminster 
Reveals 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  

Leisure Services contract and 
future of service 

To consider the next steps for 
the leisure service, including 
planning for the contract relet 
and future service design 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Work programme To review the work 
programme in light of events 
and recent discussions 

n/a – report of Head of 
Governance and Councillor 
Liaison, drafted in conjunction 
with relevant senior officers 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



ROUND 6 
17 April 2023 

Agenda item Purpose Responsible Cabinet Member 
and Executive Director 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Tim Roca, Cabinet 
Member for Cabinet Member 
for Young People, Learning 
and Leisure 
Sarah Newman, Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
Pedro Wrobel, Executive 
Director of Innovation and 
Change  
Debbie Jackson, Executive 
Director of Growth Planning 
and Housing 
Raj Mistry, Executive Director 
of Environment and City 
Management 

Cabinet Member Q&A  To update the committee on 
key areas of work within its 
remit and the Cabinet 
Member’s priorities 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care  

Public Health Investment To review the effectiveness of 
the public health investment 
fund and make 
recommendations on future 
use of such funds 

Councillor Nafsika Butler-
Thalassis, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Public 
Health and Voluntary Sector 
Bernie Flaherty, Deputy Chief 
Executive and Executive 
Director of Adult Social Care  

Work programme To review the work 
programme in light of events 
and recent discussions 

n/a – report of Head of 
Governance and Councillor 
Liaison, drafted in conjunction 
with relevant senior officers 
 

 

 

Unallocated items – this may either be substituted in for a substantive item elsewhere in the year or 

may be rolled over for future municipal years 

 Annual Fostering and Adoption Report 

 Attainment Gap  

 Primary School capacity 

 Mental Health Support Teams  

 Bridging the Gap  

 Community Health Workers 

Page 114



 Pre-birth to five strategy review 

 Suicide Prevention Strategy  

 Libraries service overview and review 

 Annual corporate parenting report 

 IRO report 

 Annual self-assessment progress report (Children’s) 

 Youth crime prevention plan 

 Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Plan 

 School Uniform Support Scheme 

 Ukraine Programme Update 

 Pre-Birth to five strategy delivery review  

 Supported Internships Annual Review 

 Participation Report 

 Autism Strategy delivery update 

 Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2021-22 

 Reports and progression pathways for young people at both key stages 

 Annual Child Protection Report 

 Westminster Guardians Report 

 Family hubs  

 An update on the Annual Youth Justice Plan (after results from the service’s inspection have 
been released)  

 

 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - ACTION TRACKER 
Children, Adults, Public Health and Voluntary Sector Policy and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 ROUND 1 
12 July 2022 

 

Agenda Item Action Status/Follow 
Up 

Item 4 
Cabinet Member 
Updates 
Policy and Scrutiny 
Portfolio Overview: 
Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, 
Public Health and 
Voluntary Sector 
 

That Hallfield Food bank be added to 
Westminster Connects list. 
 

In progress 

That arrangements be made for Members to 
visit voluntary sector organisations in 
Westminster. 

In progress 

That the Cabinet Member arranges to meet with 
the Chair to discuss potential topics to add to 
the P&S Work Programme for the forthcoming 
year. 

In progress 

That the following items be reported regularly in 
the Cabinet Member Report: 

• the status of covid in care homes and 
disability settings. 
• update on the work and decisions of 
the Integrated Care Board (ICB). 
• the on-going budget pressures on 
Adult Social Care Health. 
 

In progress 

Item 5 
Cabinet Member 
Updates 
Policy and Scrutiny 
Portfolio Overview: 
Cabinet Member for 
Young People, 
Learning and Leisure  

That the Children and Young People Mental 
Health Task Group Report be published and 
that an update on the recommendations 
contained in the report be circulated to the 
Committee. 

In progress 

That details of how the schools were managing 
the school uniform scheme be circulated to the 
Committee. 

In progress 

That the links to past Children and Adult P&S 
Committee Agenda Packs and minutes be 
emailed to the Committee. 

Complete 

 

That the Access to Culture Report 2019 and an 
update on the recommendations contained in 
the report be circulated to the Committee. 

In progress 

That parents be consulted quickly on any 
proposals regarding their children’s primary 
schools becoming federations. 

In progress 

Page 109



That an update on Westminster Adult Education 
Service (WAES) relocation to a new building be 
circulated to the Committee. 

In progress 

That data on school exclusions in Westminster 
schools be circulated to the Committee. 

Complete 

That the Cabinet Member arranges to meet with 
the Chair to discuss potential topics to add to 
the P&S Work Programme for the forthcoming 
year. 

In progress 

That a briefing on the Music Hub be included in 
Cllr Roca’s next Cabinet Member Update, in 
October. 

 

In progress 

 

That a visit to a family hub to be organised for 
Committee Members 

In progress 

Item 6 
Work Programme  

That the Annual Youth Justice Plan be 
reviewed at the September meeting. 

Complete 

That detailed data/financial implications for 
services be included in reports. 

In progress 

That discussions regarding potential topics 
continue outside of the meeting.   

In progress 

The Chair encouraged Members to email their 
ideas for topics/items for the Committee Work 
Programme, a Task Group or even for 
individual Member scrutiny to the Scrutiny 
Officer. 

In progress 

 

Page 110


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 PORTFOLIO UPDATE - CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE,  LEARNING AND LEISURE
	5 PORTFOLIO UPDATE - CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE, PUBLIC HEALTH AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR
	6 Annual Youth Justice Plan
	7 Out of School Provision
	8 Work Programme
	CAPHVS Work Programme - Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 - Work Programme - Children, Adults, Public Health and Voluntary Sector
	CAPHVS - Appendix 3 - Action Tracker


